
AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

October 12, 2021 

6:00pm Regular Session 

In accordance with AB 361, effective October 1, 2021, pertaining to the convening of public 
meetings in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Sierra County Board of Education will 

hold this meeting via Zoom Videoconferencing. 

Zoom: https://us02web.zonm.us/j/83028678277 

Phone dial-in: 669-900-9128 Webinar ID: 830 2867 8277 
(Press *6 to unmute) 

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications including auxiliary aids and services in order to participate in the 
Board meeting should contact the Superintendent or designee in writing. 

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made available at the Sierra 
County Office of Education, Room 3, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with tire onli11e agenda at 

'11tp;/A,o, 1w.Siamtmtntvollit:..;o[ed11n1tillfl.Ol'g (Government Code 54957.5). 

A. CALL TO ORDER
Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF UTILIZING AB 361 TO CONDUCT THIS BOARD MEETING VIA ZOOM

VIDEOCONFERENCING - OCTOBER 12, 2021

D. APPROVAL OF UTILIZING AB 361 TO CONDUCT THE NEXT SCHEDULED BOARD
MEETING VIA ZOOM VIDEOCONFERENCING- NOVEMBER 09, 2021

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

F. FLAG SALUTE

G. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Superintendent's Report
a. Professional Services Agreement with Jenna Artaz for Counseling Services,

Contract 2022-011 C
b. COVID-19 Prevention Program**

c. Temporary Extra Duty hours for Support Services
d. Copy Kristie Jacobsen on Superintendent emails (kjacobsen@spjusd.org)

2. Business Report

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2021 to 9/30/2021 **

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes)

4. Board Member Reports (5 minutes)

5. Public Comment -This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing

board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board whether or
not it is listed on the agenda. Three (3) minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty
(20) minutes to each subject matter. (Education Code 35145.5; Bylaw 9322; Government Code 54954.3)

H. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held September 21, 2021 **
2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021 **

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
AGENDA 

1 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83028678277


Sierra County Board of Education 

October 12, 2021 Board Meeting Agenda 

I. ACTION ITEMS

1. New Business

a. Masks in Schools

PUBLIC HEARING-Textbooks an.d Tm,trur.tinn.al Materials 

b. Public Hearing to receive comments on the sufficiency of textbooks and
instructional materials for Kindergarten through 12th grade in each subject and
to assure that they are aligned with the state standards adopted pursuant to Ed
Code 60605 or 60605.8. Also meet the reporting and sufficiency requirements
contained in Ed Code 60119.

c. Adoption of Resolution No. 22-00SC, Sufficiency of Textbooks or
Instructional Materials**
ROLL CALL VOTE

d. Approval of Textbook Adoption Lead Teacher Extra Duty Stipend (as was
approved on the District side in September)

e. Approval of Teacher in Charge Extra Duty Stipend for Downieville Schools for
the 2021-2022 School Year

f. Approval of updated Injury and Illness Prevention Plan**
g. Approval of Technology Specialist job description and salary schedule**
h. Approval of Addendum to Superintendent Contract 2020-07D, Addendum

Contract 2022-012C**

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

1. 04 70---COVID- l 9 Mitigation Plan
1. Board Policy, revisions**

J. 3516.5-Emergency Schedules
1. Board Policy, revisions**

k. 4131-Staff Development (certificated)
1. Board Policy, revisions**

J. ADVANCED PLANNING

1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on November 09, 2021, beginning with
Closed Session as needed at 5:00pm and the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm.
Location TBD. Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the public.

2. Suggested Agenda Items

K. ADJOURN

fames Berardi, Superintendent 
Secretary to the County Board of Education 

*** prior month handout 
** enclosed 
* handout

James Berardi, Superintendent (iberardi@spjusd.org) 
Kristie Jacobsen, Administrative Assistant (kjacobsen@spjusd.org) 
Nona Griesert, Business Manager (ngriesert@spjusd.org) 
Office: 530-993-1660 x0 

Page 2 of2 



COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) for SIERRA PLUMAS 
JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT/SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF 

EDUCATION. 

 
This CPP is designed to control employees’ exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus (COVID-19) that may occur in 

our workplace. 

 
Date: 9/24/2021 

 

Authority and Responsibility 

James Berardi, Superintendent, has overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of 

this CPP in our workplace. In addition, all managers and supervisors are responsible for implementing and 

maintaining the CPP in their assigned work areas and for ensuring employees receive answers to questions 

about the program in a language they understand. 

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives, policies and 

procedures, and assisting in maintaining a safe work environment. 

 

Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards 

We implement the following in our workplace: 

• Conduct workplace-specific evaluations using the Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards 

form. 

• Document the vaccination status of our employees by using Appendix E: Documentation of 

Employee COVID-19 Vaccination Status, which is maintained as a confidential medical 

record. 

• Evaluate employees’ potential workplace exposures to all persons at, or who may enter, our workplace. 

• Develop COVID-19 policies and procedures to respond effectively and immediately to individuals at 

the workplace who are a COVID-19 case to prevent or reduce the risk of transmission in the workplace  

• Review applicable orders and general and industry-specific guidance from the State of California, Cal/ 

OSHA, and the local health department related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention. 

• Evaluate existing COVID-19 prevention controls in our workplace and the need for different or 

additional controls. 

• Conduct periodic inspections using the Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections form as needed to 

identify and evaluate unhealthy conditions, work practices, and work procedures related to COVID-19 

and to ensure compliance with our COVID-19 policies and procedures. 

• Daily Temperature Checks 

 

 
Employee participation 

Employees and their authorized employees’ representatives are encouraged to participate in the 

identification and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards. 

 
Employee screening 

We screen our employees and respond to those with COVID-19 symptoms by: temperature screening 

daily with non-contact thermometers, directly screen employees when they come to work, or having 

them self- screen according to CDPH guidelines. When indoors, ensure that face coverings are 

used during screening by both screeners and employees who are not fully vaccinated. 

 
Correction of COVID-19 Hazards 

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures are documented on the Appendix B: 



COVID-19 Inspections form, and corrected in a timely manner based on the severity of the hazards, as 

follows: 

• Individuals are identified as being responsible for timely correction. 

• Follow-up measures are taken to ensure timely correction.] 

 

Control of COVID-19 Hazards 

Face Coverings 

We provide clean, undamaged face coverings and ensure they are properly worn by employees that 

are not fully vaccinated when they are indoors or in vehicles, and where required by orders from the 

California Department of Public Health (CDPH).  

 
Employees required to wear face coverings in our workplace may remove them under the following 

conditions: 

• When an employee is alone in a room or a vehicle. 

• While eating or drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least six feet apart and outside air 

supply to the area, if indoors, has been maximized to the extent feasible. 

• Employees who cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health condition or disability, 

or who are hearing-impaired or communicating with a hearing-impaired person. Such employees will 

wear an effective, non-restrictive alternative, such as a face shield with a drape on the bottom, if their 

condition permits it. 

• Specific tasks that cannot feasibly be performed with a face covering. This exception is limited to the 

time in which such tasks are being performed. 

 
Any employee not wearing a required face covering or allowed non-restrictive alternative, will be at least six 

feet apart from all other persons unless the unmasked employee is either fully vaccinated or tested at least 

weekly for COVID-19. 

 
We will not prevent any employee from wearing a face covering when it is not required unless it would 

create a safety hazard, such as interfering with the safe operation of equipment. 

 
Face coverings will also be provided to any employee that requests one, regardless of their vaccination 

status. 

 
Engineering controls 

For indoor locations, using Appendix B, we identify and evaluate how to maximize, to the extent feasible, 

ventilation with outdoor air using the highest filtration efficiency compatible with our existing ventilation 

system, and whether the use of portable or mounted High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) filtration units, 

or other air cleaning systems, would reduce the risk of transmission by: 

• Circumstances where the amount of outside air needs to be minimized due to other hazards, 

such as heat, wildfire smoke, or when the EPA Air Quality Index is greater than 100 for any 

pollutant. 

• How to maximize, to the extent feasible, the amount of outside air and increase filtration 

efficiency to the highest level compatible with the existing ventilation system. 

• Implement use of portable HEPA filtration, medical grade design with two levels of protection. 

We determine such use would  reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. 

• Applicable orders and guidance from the State of California and our local health department 

related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention, including CDPH’s Interim Guidance for Ventilation, 

Filtration, and Air Quality in Indoor Environments. 

 
Cleaning and disinfecting 

We implement the following cleaning and disinfection measures for frequently touched surfaces and 

objects, such as doorknobs, equipment, tools, handrails, handles, controls, phones, headsets, bathroom 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Interim-Guidance-for-Ventilation-Filtration-and-Air-Quality-in-Indoor-Environments.aspx


surfaces, and steering wheels: 

 

• Ensuring adequate supplies and adequate time for it to be done properly. 

• Informing the employees and authorized employee representatives of the frequency and scope 

of cleaning and disinfection. 

 
Should we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will implement the following procedures: 

Cleaning and disinfecting office areas, conference rooms and other common areas.  

Frequently touched surfaces and objects like tables, desks and other surfaces, chairs, 

doorknobs and handles, light switches. 

Buses will be cleaned and disinfected 

Devices that are used by students and/or employees will be sanitized.  

 
Hand sanitizing 

To implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, we: 

 

• Evaluating handwashing facilities. 

• Encouraging and allowing time for employee handwashing. 

• Providing employees with an effective hand sanitizer, and prohibit hand sanitizers that contain 

methanol (i.e., methyl alcohol). 

• Encouraging employees to wash their hands for at least 20 seconds each time. 

 
Personal protective equipment (PPE) used to control employees’ exposure to COVID-19 

We evaluate the need for PPE (such as gloves, goggles, and face shields) as required by section 3380, 

and provide and ensure use of such PPE as needed. 

 
Upon request, we will provide respirators for voluntary use to all employees who are not fully 

vaccinated and who are working indoors or in vehicles with more than one person. 



 
 

Testing of symptomatic employees 

We make COVID-19 testing available at no cost to employees with COVID-19 symptoms who are not fully 

vaccinated, during employees’ paid time. 

 

Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases 

We have developed effective procedure to investigate COVID-19 cases that include seeking information 

from our employees regarding COVID-19 cases, close contacts, test results, and onset of symptoms. This 

is accomplished by using the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form. 

 
We also ensure the following is implemented: 

 

• Employees that had a close contact are offered COVID-19 testing at no cost during their working 

hours. 

• The information on benefits described in Training and Instruction, and Exclusion of COVID-19 

Cases, below, will be provided to employees. 

• Written notice within 1 day of your knowledge of a COVID-19 case that people at the worksite 

may have been exposed to COVID-19. This notice will be provided to all employees (and their 

authorized representative), independent contractors and other employers at the worksite during 

the high-risk exposure period. These notifications must meet the requirements of T8CCR 

section 3205(c)(3)(B) and Labor Code section 6409.6(a)(4); (a)(2); and (c), and in a form readily 

understandable by employees and can be anticipated to be received by the employee.] 

 

System for Communicating 

Our goal is to ensure that we have effective two-way communication with our employees, in a form they 

can readily understand, and that it includes the following information: 

• Who employees should report COVID-19 symptoms, possible close contacts and hazards to, and how. 

Supervisor and/or Nurse 

• That employees can report symptoms, possible close contacts and hazards without fear of reprisal. 

• How employees with medical or other conditions that put them at increased risk of severe COVID-19 

illness can request accommodations.  

• Access to COVID-19 testing when testing is required. 

• The COVID-19 hazards employees (including other employers and individuals in contact with our



workplace) may be exposed to, what is being done to control those hazards, and our COVID-19 

policies and procedures.  

 

Going over these in a training with information on these topics will be mandatory for all employees. 

 
Training and Instruction 

We provide effective employee training and instruction that includes: 

• Our COVID-19 policies and procedures to protect employees from COVID-19 hazards, and how to 

participate in the identification and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards. 

• Information regarding COVID-19-related benefits (including mandated sick and vaccination leave) to 

which the employee may be entitled under applicable federal, state, or local laws. 

• The fact that: 

○ COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread through the air. 

○ COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated object and then touches 

their eyes, nose, or mouth. 

○ An infectious person may have no symptoms. 

• The fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than six feet, especially indoors, so physical 

distancing, face coverings, increased ventilation indoors, and respiratory protection decrease the 

spread of COVID-19 and are most effective when used in combination. 

• The right of employees that are not fully vaccinated to request a respirator for voluntary use, without 

fear of retaliation, and our policies for providing the respirators. Employees voluntarily using respirators 

will be trained according to section 5144(c)(2) requirements: 

○ How to properly wear them. 

○ How to perform a seal check according to the manufacturer’s instructions each time a respirator is 

worn, and the fact that facial hair can interfere with a seal. 

• The importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds and using hand 

sanitizer when employees do not have immediate access to a sink or hand washing facility, and that 

hand sanitizer does not work if the hands are soiled. 

• Proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings are not respiratory protective equipment. 

Since COVID-19 is an airborne disease, N95s and more protective respirators protect the users from 

airborne disease, while face coverings primarily protect people around the user. 

○ The conditions where face coverings musts be worn at the workplace. 

○ That face coverings are additionally recommended outdoors for people who are not fully vaccinated 

if six feet of distance cannot be maintained. 

○ Employees can request face coverings and can wear them at work regardless of vaccination status 

and without fear of retaliation. 

• COVID-19 symptoms, and the importance of obtaining a COVID-19 test and not coming to work if the 

employee has COVID-19 symptoms. 

• Information on our COVID-19 policies and how to access COVID-19 testing and vaccination, and the 

fact that vaccination is effective at preventing COVID-19, protecting against both transmission and 

serious illness or death. 

 
Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster will be used to document this training. 

 

Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who had a Close Contact 

Where we have a COVID-19 case or close contact in our workplace, we limit transmission by: 

• Ensuring that COVID-19 cases are excluded from the workplace until our return-to-work requirements 



are met. 

• Excluding employees that had a close contact from the workplace until our return-to-work criteria have 

been met, with the following exceptions: 

○ Employees who were fully vaccinated before the close contact and who do not develop COVID-19 

symptoms. 

○ COVID-19 cases who returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained free of 

COVID-19 symptoms, for 90 days after the initial onset of COVID-19 symptoms, or for COVID-19 

cases who never developed COVID-19 symptoms, for 90 days after the first positive test. 

• For employees excluded from work, continuing, and maintaining employees’ earnings, wages, seniority, 

and all other employees’ rights and benefits. This will be accomplished by  

 

 Up to 60 workdays of Worker’s Compensation/Industrial Leave 

 Sick Leave 

 Extended Illness Leave 

 Other rights specified in the collective bargaining agreement or applicable MOU 

 

• Providing employees at the time of exclusion with information on available benefits. 

 

Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access 

It is our policy to: 

• Report information about COVID-19 cases and outbreaks at our workplace to the local health 

department whenever required by law, and provide any related information requested by the local 

health department. 

• Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19 Prevention Program in 

accordance with section 3203(b). 

• Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the workplace to employees, authorized 

employee representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA immediately upon request. 

• Use the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form to keep a record of and track all COVID-19 

cases. 

 

Return-to-Work Criteria 

• COVID-19 cases with symptoms will not return to work until all the following have occurred: 

○ At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 °F. or higher has resolved without the use of 

fever-reducing medications, and 

○ COVID-19 symptoms have improved, and 

○ At least 10 days have passed since COVID-19 symptoms first appeared. 

• COVID-19 cases who tested positive but never developed symptoms will not return to work until a 

minimum of 10 days have passed since the date of specimen collection of their first positive COVID-19 

test. 

• A negative COVID-19 test will not be required for an employee to return to work once the requirements 

for “cases with symptoms” or “cases who tested positive but never developed symptoms” (above) have 

been met. 

• Persons who had a close contact may return to work as follows: 

○ Close contact but never developed symptoms: when 10 days have passed since the last known 

close contact. 

○ Close contact with symptoms: when the “cases with symptoms” criteria (above) have been met, 

unless the following are true: 

● The person tested negative for COVID-19 using a polymerase chain reaction (PCR) COVID-19 

test with specimen taken after the onset of symptoms; and 

● At least 10 days have passed since the last known close contact, and 

● The person has been symptom-free for at least 24 hours, without using fever-reducing 

medications. 

  



 

• If an order to isolate, quarantine, or exclude an employee is issued by a local or state health official, the 

employee will not return to work until the period of isolation or quarantine is completed or the order is 

lifted.  



Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards 

All persons, regardless of symptoms or negative COVID-19 test results, will be considered potentially 

infectious. Particular attention will be paid to areas where people may congregate or come in contact with 

one another, regardless of whether employees are performing an assigned work task or not. For example: 

meetings, trainings, entrances, bathrooms, hallways, aisles, walkways, elevators, break or eating areas, 

cool-down areas, and waiting areas. 

 
Evaluation of potential workplace exposure will be to all persons at the workplace or who may enter the 

workplace, including coworkers, employees of other entities, members of the public, customers or clients, 

and independent contractors. We will consider how employees and other persons enter, leave, and travel 

through the workplace, in addition to addressing stationary work. 

 
Person conducting the evaluation:  

Date:  

Name(s) of employee and authorized employee representative that participated: 
 

Interaction, area, activity, 

work task, process, 

equipment and material 

that potentially exposes 

employees to COVID-19 

hazards 

 
 

Places and times 

 

Potential for COVID-19 

exposures and employees 

affected, including members 

of the public and employees 

of other employers 

 

Existing and/or 

additional COVID-19 

prevention controls 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    



Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections 
 

Date:  

 
Name of person conducting the inspection:  

 
Work location evaluated:  

 
 

Exposure Controls Status 
Person Assigned to 

Correct 
Date Corrected 

Engineering 
   

Ventilation* (amount of 

fresh air and 

filtration maximized) 

   

Additional room air 

filtration* 

   

    

Administrative 
   

Surface cleaning and 

disinfection 

(frequently enough and 

adequate 

supplies) 

   

Hand washing facilities 

(adequate 

numbers and supplies) 

   

Disinfecting and hand 

sanitizing solutions 

being used according to 

manufacturer instructions 

   

School buses will be 
sanitized using a fogger 

daily      

   



Exposure Controls Status 
Person Assigned to 

Correct 
Date Corrected 

    

PPE (not shared, 

available and being worn) 

   

Face coverings (cleaned 

sufficiently often) 

   

Gloves 
   

Face shields/goggles 
   

Respiratory protection 
   

    

*Identify and evaluate how to maximize ventilation with outdoor air; the highest level of filtration efficiency 

compatible with the existing ventilation system; and whether the use of portable or mounted HEPA filtration 

units, or other air cleaning systems, would reduce the risk of COVID-19 transmission. Review applicable 

orders and guidance from the State of California and local health departments related to COVID-19 hazards 

and prevention have been reviewed, including the CDPH Interim Guidance for Ventilation, Filtrations, 

and Air Quality in Indoor Environments and information specific to your industry, location, and operations. 

We maximize the quantity of outside air provided to the extent feasible, except when the United States 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Air Quality Index is greater than 100 for any pollutant or if opening 

windows or maximizing outdoor air by other means would cause a hazard to employees, for instance from 

excessive heat or cold. 



Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases 

All personal identifying information of COVID-19 cases or persons with COVID-19 symptoms, and any 

employee required medical records will be kept confidential unless disclosure is required or permitted by 

law. Un-redacted information on COVID-19 cases will be provided to the local health department, CDPH, 

Cal/ 

OSHA, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) immediately upon request, and when 

required by law. 

 
Date:  

Name of person conducting the investigation:  

Name of COVID-19 case (employee or non-employee*) and contact information:  

 
Occupation (if non-employee*, why they were in the workplace):  

 
*If we are made aware of a non-employee COVID-19 case in our workplace 

 
Names of employees/representatives involved in the investigation:  

 
Date investigation was initiated: 

 
Locations where the COVID-19 case was present in the workplace during the high-risk exposure 

period, and activities being performed:  

 
Date and time the COVID-19 case was last present and excluded from the workplace:  

 
 

Date of the positive or negative test and/or diagnosis:  

 
Date the case first had one or more COVID-19 symptoms, if any:  

 
Information received regarding COVID-19 test results and onset of symptoms (attach documentation): 

 
Summary determination of who may have had a close contact with the COVID-19 case during the high- 

risk exposure period. Attach additional information, including: 

• The names of those found to be in close contact. 

• Their vaccination status. 

• When testing was offered, including the results and the names of those that were exempt from 

testing because. 

○ They were fully vaccinated before the close contact and do not have symptoms. 

○ They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free for 90 

days or, for those that never developed symptoms, for 90 days after the initial positive test. 

• The names of those that were excluded per our Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Employees who 

had a Close Contact requirements. 

• The names of those exempt from exclusion requirements because: 

○ They were fully vaccinated before the close contact and did not develop COVID-19 symptoms. 

○ They returned to work per our return-to-work criteria and have remained symptom free for 90 

days or, for those that never developed symptoms, for 90 days after the initial positive test. 

 



Notice given (within one business day, in a way that does not reveal any personal identifying 

information of the COVID-19 case) of the potential COVID-19 exposure to: 

1. All employees who were in close contact 

2. Their authorized representatives (If applicable, the notice required by Labor Code section 6409.6(a) 

(2) and (c)) 

 
 

Names of employees that were 

notified: 

 

Names of their authorized 

representatives: 

 
Date 

   

   

   

   

Independent contractors and other employers present at the workplace during the high-risk exposure 

period. 

 

 
Names of individuals that were notified: 

 
Date 

  

  

  

  



What were the workplace conditions that could have contributed to the risk of COVID-19 exposure? 

 

 

 

 

 
What could be done to reduce exposure to COVID-19? 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Was local health department notified? Date? 



 

 
Date:  

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster 

 

Person that conducted the training:  
 
 

 
Employee Name 

 
Signature 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



Appendix E: Documentation of Employee COVID-19 Vaccination 

Status - CONFIDENTIAL 
 

Employee Name 
Fully or Partially 

Vaccinated1 

Method of 

Documentation2 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

1Update, accordingly and maintain as confidential medical record 
2Acceptable options include: 

• Employees provide proof of vaccination (vaccine card, image of vaccine card or health care document 

showing vaccination status) and employer maintains a copy. 

• Employees provide proof of vaccination. The employer maintains a record of the employees who presented 

proof, but not the vaccine record itself. 

• Employees self-attest to vaccination status and employer maintains a record of who self-attests. 



Additional Consideration #1 

Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks 

[This addendum will need to be added to your CPP if three or more employee COVID-19 cases 

within an exposed group visited the workplace during their high-risk exposure period at any time 

during a 14-day period. Reference section 3205.1 for details.] 

 
This addendum will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in the exposed group for 

a 14-day period. 

 
COVID-19 testing 

• We provide COVID-19 testing at no cost to all employees, during paid time, in our exposed group 

except for: 

○ Employees who were not present during the relevant 14-day period. 

○ Employees who were fully vaccinated before the multiple infections or outbreak and who do not 

have symptoms. 

○ COVID-19 cases who did not develop symptoms after returning to work pursuant to our return-to- 

work criteria, no testing is required for 90 days after the initial onset of symptoms or, for COVID-19 

cases who never developed symptoms, 90 days after the first positive test. 

• COVID-19 testing consists of the following: 

○ All employees in our exposed group are immediately tested and then again one week later. 

Negative COVID-19 test results of employees with COVID-19 exposure will not impact the duration 

of any quarantine, isolation, or exclusion period required by, or orders issued by, the local health 

department. 

○ After the first two COVID-19 tests, we continue to provide COVID-19 testing once a week of 

employees in the exposed group who remain at the workplace, or more frequently if recommended 

by the local health department, until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace 

for a 14-day period. 

○ We provide additional testing when deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA. 

 
We continue to comply with the applicable elements of our CPP, as well as the following: 

1. Employees in the exposed group wear face coverings when indoors, or when outdoors and less 

than six feet apart (unless one of the face-covering exceptions indicated in our CPP apply). 

2. We give notice to employees in the exposed group of their right to request a respirator for voluntary 

use if they are not fully vaccinated. 

3. We evaluate whether to implement physical distancing of at least six feet between persons, or 

where six feet of physical distancing is not feasible, the need for use of cleanable solid partitions of 

sufficient size to reduce COVID-19 transmission. 

 
COVID-19 investigation, review, and hazard correction 

We immediately perform a review of potentially relevant COVID-19 policies, procedures, and controls and 

implement changes as needed to prevent further spread of COVID-19. 

 
The investigation and review is documented and includes: 

• Investigation of new or unabated COVID-19 hazards including: 

○ Our leave policies and practices and whether employees are discouraged from remaining home 

when sick. 

○ Our COVID-19 testing policies. 

○ Insufficient outdoor air. 

○ Insufficient air filtration. 

○ Lack of physical distancing. 

https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_1.html


• Updating the review: 

○ Every thirty days that the outbreak continues. 

○ In response to new information or to new or previously unrecognized COVID-19 hazards. 

○ When otherwise necessary. 

• Implementing changes to reduce the transmission of COVID-19 based on the investigation and review. 

We consider: 

○ Moving indoor tasks outdoors or having them performed remotely. 

○ Increasing outdoor air supply when work is done indoors. 

○ Improving air filtration. 

○ Increasing physical distancing as much as feasible. 

○ Requiring respiratory protection in compliance with section 5144. 

 
Buildings or structures with mechanical ventilation 

We will filter recirculated air with Minimum Efficiency Reporting Value (MERV) 13 or higher efficiency 

filters, if compatible with the ventilation system. If MERV-13 or higher filters are not compatible, we will use 

filters with the highest compatible filtering efficiency. We will also evaluate whether portable or mounted 

High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) filtration units or other air cleaning systems would reduce the risk of 

transmission and, if so, implement their use to the degree feasible. 



Additional Consideration #2 

Major COVID-19 Outbreaks 

[This addendum will need to be added to your CPP should 20 or more employee COVID-19 cases in 

an exposed group visit your workplace during the high-risk exposure period within a 30-day period. 

Reference section 3205.2 for details.] 

 
This addendum will stay in effect until there are fewer than three COVID-19 cases detected in our exposed 

group for a 14-day period. 

 
We continue to comply with the Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks addendum, except 

that the COVID-19 testing, regardless of vaccination status, is made available to all employees in the 

exposed group twice a week, or more frequently if recommended by the local health department. 

 
In addition to complying with our CPP and Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks 

addendum, we also: 

• Provide employees in the exposed group with respirators for voluntary use in compliance with section 

5144(c)(2) and determine the need for a respiratory protection program or changes to an existing 

respiratory protection program under section 5144 to address COVID-19 hazards. 

• Separate by six feet (except where we can demonstrate that six feet of separation is not feasible and 

there is momentary exposure while persons are in movement) any employees in the exposed group 

who are not wearing respirators required by us and used in compliance with section 5144. When it is 

not feasible to maintain a distance of at least six feet, individuals are as far apart as feasible. [Describe 

methods used, such as physical distancing that includes: telework or other remote work 

arrangements; reducing the number of persons in an area at one time, including visitors; visual 

cues such as signs and floor markings to indicate where employees and others should be 

located or their direction and path of travel; staggered arrival, departure, work, and break times; 

and adjusted work processes or procedures, such as reducing production speed, to allow 

greater distance between employees.] 

• Install cleanable solid partitions that effectively reduce transmission between the employee and other 

persons at workstations where an employee in the exposed group is assigned to work for an extended 

period, such as cash registers, desks, and production line stations, and where the physical distancing 

requirement (described above) is not always maintained. 

• Evaluate whether to halt some or all operations at the workplace until COVID-19 hazards have been 

corrected. 

• Implement any other control measures deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA. 

https://www.dir.ca.gov/title8/3205_2.html




Additional Consideration #4 

COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Transportation 
 

 
Assignment of transportation 

To the extent feasible, we reduce exposure to COVID-19 hazards by assigning employees sharing 

vehicles to distinct groups and ensuring that each group remains separate from other such groups during 

transportation, during work activities, and in employer-provided housing. We prioritize shared transportation 

assignments in the following order: 

• Employees residing in the same housing unit are transported in the same vehicle. 

• Employees working in the same crew or workplace are transported in the same vehicle. 

• Employees who do not share the same household, work crew or workplace are transported in the same 

vehicle only when no other transportation alternatives are feasible. 

 
Face coverings and respirators 

We ensure that the: 

• Face covering requirements of our CPP Face Coverings are followed for employees waiting for 

transportation, if applicable. 

• All employees who are not fully vaccinated are provided with a face covering, which must be worn 

unless an exception under our CPP Face Coverings applies. 

• Upon request, we provide respirators for voluntary use in compliance with subsection 5144(c)(2) to all 

employees in the vehicle who are not fully vaccinated. 

 
Screening 

We develop, implement, and maintain effective procedures for screening and excluding drivers and riders 

with COVID-19 symptoms prior to boarding shared transportation. 

 
Cleaning and disinfecting 

We ensure that: 

• All high-contact surfaces (door handles, seatbelt buckles, armrests, etc.) used by passengers are 

cleaned to prevent the spread of COVID-19 and are cleaned and disinfected if used by a COVID-19 

case during the high-risk exposure period, when the surface will be used by another employee within 

24 hours of the COVID-19 case. 

• All high-contact surfaces used by drivers, such as the steering wheel, armrests, seatbelt buckles, 

door handles and shifter, are cleaned to prevent the spread of COVID-19 between different drivers 



and are disinfected after use by a COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure period, if the surface 

will be used by another employee within 24 hours of the COVID-19 case.  

We provide sanitizing materials, training on how to use them properly, and ensure they are kept in 

adequate supply. 

 
Ventilation 

We ensure that vehicle windows are kept open, and the ventilation system is set to maximize outdoor 

air and not set to recirculate air. Windows do not have to be kept open if one or more of the following 

conditions exist: 

 
• The vehicle has functioning air conditioning in use and excessive outdoor heat would create a hazard to 

employees. 

• The vehicle has functioning heating in use and excessive outdoor cold would create a hazard to 

employees. 

• Protection is needed from weather conditions; such as rain or snow. 

• The vehicle has a cabin air filter in use and the U.S. EPA Air Quality Index for any pollutant is greater 

than 100. 

 
Hand hygiene 

We provide hand sanitizer in each vehicle and ensure that all drivers and riders sanitize their hands before 

entering and exiting the vehicle. Hand sanitizers with methyl alcohol are prohibited. 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through September

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 307,843.00 307,843.00 269,249.76 33,516.64 5,076.60 Teachers Salaries

1115 1,000.00 1,000.00 160.00 840.00 Certificated Extra Duty

1120 7,500.00 7,500.00 140.00 7,360.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 56,444.00 56,444.00 22,920.57 7,640.19 25,883.24 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 197,315.00 197,315.00 141,648.93 49,704.01 5,962.06 Certificated Supervisor Admini

1310 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 Teacher in Charge

Total for Object 1000 580,102.00 580,102.00 433,819.26 91,160.84 55,121.90 

2100 154,607.00 154,607.00 109,459.08 13,109.24 32,038.68 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2115 1,000.00 1,000.00 69.67 930.33 Classified Extra Duty

2120 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,344.00 3,656.00 Classified Substitutes

2200 39,910.00 39,910.00 59,123.11 13,075.46 32,288.57-Classified Support Salaries

2215 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Classified Support Extra Duty

2220 111.08 111.08-Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 207,800.00 207,800.00 93,752.55 31,269.00 82,778.45 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 150,609.00 150,609.00 109,746.72 34,776.53 6,085.75 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 19,752.00 19,752.00 322.00 19,430.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 579,678.00 579,678.00 372,081.46 94,076.98 113,519.56 

3101 160,406.00 160,406.00 73,402.11 15,400.70 71,603.19 STRS Certificated Positions

3202 122,318.00 122,318.00 83,548.00 21,829.70 16,940.30 PERS Classified Positions

3302 35,661.00 35,661.00 22,831.16 5,870.02 6,959.82 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 9,207.00 9,207.00 6,088.05 1,507.61 1,611.34 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 8,346.00 8,346.00 5,344.02 1,374.84 1,627.14 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 110,570.00 110,570.00 89,427.33 15,480.15 5,662.52 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 70,148.00 70,148.00 99,282.33 23,156.71 52,291.04-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 6,748.00 6,748.00 4,533.75 947.47 1,266.78 SUI Certificated

3502 7,129.00 7,129.00 3,795.60 822.94 2,510.46 SUI Classified

3601 24,094.00 24,094.00 15,004.35 3,154.97 5,934.68 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 21,837.00 21,837.00 13,170.32 3,388.26 5,278.42 Workers' Compensation Classifi

3901 15,689.00 15,689.00 15,688.50 .50 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 592,153.00 592,153.00 416,427.02 108,621.87 67,104.11 

4100 1,001.00 1,001.00 1,001.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 54,248.00 54,248.00 6,602.52 1,041.96 46,603.52 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,750.00 1,750.00 180.00 1,570.00 Office Supplies

4350 3,500.00 3,500.00 1,269.02 230.98 2,000.00 Vehicle Upkeep

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 3, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2021  7:26AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2115
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2215
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through September

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

4399 4,293.00 4,293.00 4,293.00 Mat & Sup Undesignated Bal

4400 9,414.00 9,414.00 9,414.00 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 75,206.00 75,206.00 8,051.54 1,272.94 65,881.52 

5100 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 14,500.00 14,500.00 2,113.50 3,021.00 9,365.50 Travel and Conference

5300 16,941.00 16,941.00 1,364.22 17,157.74 1,580.96-Dues and Membership

5400 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 Insurance

5500 14,500.00 14,500.00 3,742.00 258.00 10,500.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 2,500.00 577.52 209.37 1,713.11 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 18,500.00 18,500.00 4,914.50 85.50 13,500.00 Legal Services

5805 500.00 500.00 118.00 32.00 350.00 Personnel Expense

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 Other Services & Fees

5810 385,979.00 385,979.00 238,346.86 40,143.36 107,488.78 Contracted Services

5899 1,764.87 26,884.28 28,649.15-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 10,500.00 10,500.00 7,291.56 5,556.86 2,348.42-Communications

Total for Object 5000 520,420.00 520,420.00 260,233.03 93,348.11 166,838.86 

6400 20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 Equipment

6500 15,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 Equipment Replacement

Total for Object 6000 35,000.00 35,000.00 .00 .00 35,000.00 

7110 25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 24,428.00 24,428.00 24,428.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 49,428.00 49,428.00 .00 .00 49,428.00 

552,893.95 2,431,987.00 2,431,987.00 1,490,612.31 388,480.74 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 11 - ADULT ED   

1100 2,211.88 2,211.88-Teachers Salaries

1300 101,715.00 101,715.00 74,064.06 24,688.02 2,962.92 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 101,715.00 101,715.00 74,064.06 26,899.90 751.04 

2200 3,143.00 3,143.00 3,143.00 Classified Support Salaries

2400 18,164.25 2,950.41 21,114.66-Clerical Technical Office Staf

Total for Object 2000 3,143.00 3,143.00 18,164.25 2,950.41 17,971.66-

3101 22,410.00 22,410.00 12,531.60 4,392.77 5,485.63 STRS Certificated Positions

3202 720.00 720.00 4,161.41 675.93 4,117.34-PERS Classified Positions

3301 58.15 58.15-OASDI Certificated Positions

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 3, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2021  7:26AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4399
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3301


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through September

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 11 - ADULT ED    (continued)

3302 195.00 195.00 1,126.19 182.93 1,114.12-OASDI Classified Positions

3311 1,475.00 1,475.00 1,073.97 390.06 10.97 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 46.00 46.00 263.36 42.78 260.14-Medicare Classified Positions

3401 12,767.00 12,767.00 9,575.10 3,191.70 .20 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3501 1,251.00 1,251.00 910.98 254.65 85.37 SUI Certificated

3502 39.00 39.00 90.83 14.76 66.59-SUI Classified

3601 3,859.00 3,859.00 2,646.72 961.28 251.00 Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 119.00 119.00 649.12 105.43 635.55-Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 42,881.00 42,881.00 33,029.28 10,270.44 418.72-

4100 6,500.00 6,500.00 5,065.24 1,434.76 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4300 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,684.54 2,170.91 2,855.45-Materials and Supplies

4320 2,000.00 2,000.00 .03- 2,000.03 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,398.90 225.89 1,375.21 Office Supplies

4350 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,184.22 3,815.78 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 5,200.00 5,200.00 5,241.35 4,209.97 4,251.32-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 27,700.00 27,700.00 19,574.25 6,606.74 1,519.01 

5200 6,500.00 6,500.00 917.58 1,207.42 4,375.00 Travel and Conference

5203 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 MILEAGE

5300 1,500.00 1,500.00 83.40 1,100.00 316.60 Dues and Membership

5500 4,200.00 4,200.00 3,029.78 370.22 800.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,651.32 246.90 601.78 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Legal Services

5805 100.00 100.00 1.00 49.00 50.00 Personnel Expense

5808 489.60 110.40 600.00-Other Services & Fees

5810 17,000.00 17,000.00 3,111.42 16,866.00 2,977.42-Contracted Services

5900 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,020.73 179.27 3,800.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 38,800.00 38,800.00 10,304.83 20,129.21 8,365.96 

6200 6,380.00 6,380.00 3,250.00 3,250.00 120.00-Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 6,610.00 6,610.00 6,610.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 12,990.00 12,990.00 3,250.00 3,250.00 6,490.00 

7619 6,971.00 6,971.00 6,971.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

5,706.63 234,200.00 234,200.00 158,386.67 70,106.70 Total for Fund 11 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 3, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 3 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2021  7:26AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5203
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=11&p8=Fund&p7=7619
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2021/22Balances through September

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 16 - FOREST RES    (continued)

7619 13,360.00 13,360.00 13,360.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

93,360.00 93,360.00 93,360.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

651,960.58 2,759,547.00 2,759,547.00 1,648,998.98 458,587.44 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2022, Period = 3, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 4 of 4

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2021  7:26AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=127122&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


1 

SCOE Minutes 

September 21, 2021 

MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

September 21, 2021 

6:00pm Regular Session  

Loyalton: Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

Zoom videoconferencing was also available for the public. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 6:08pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Patty Hall, President 

  Allen Wright, Vice President 

Christina Potter, Clerk 

  Mike Moore, Member 

  Nicole Stannard, Member 

ABSENT: None 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOORE/STANNARD 

5/0 

D. FLAG SALUTE 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Superintendent Email Process 

BERARDI: Please copy my Administrative Assistant on all emails, Kristie 

Jacobsen (kjacobsen@spjusd.org). This is to help ensure all emails are seen 

and addressed in a timely manner. 

b. Board Participation in CSBA Annual Conference, December 2-4 

BERARDI: California School Boards Association is putting on their annual 

conference and I encourage board members to participate for ongoing training 

opportunities and refreshers. 

c. Assignment of Alicia Misita, TK/K/1st Grade Teacher, Downieville Elementary 

School, .67 FTE (4 hr/day), effective August 23, 2021 

d. Professional Services Agreement with Kelli Grock for Counseling Services, 

Contract 2022-008C 

e. Professional Services Agreement with Micah Cohen for Occupational Therapy 

Services, Contract 2022-009C 

f. Professional Services Agreement with Barbara McKurtis for Hearing Services, 

Contract 2022-010C 

g. Request for Leave of Absence for Amy Burt, Loyalton Elementary School 

Special Education Instructional Aide 

2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance from 07/01/2021 to 08/31/2021 

3. Staff Reports 

ADULT ED—JACKSON: Go-Teach Program is in third year – very positive 

impact on Sierra CDC/Toddler Towers. Working to expand daycare services in the 

County. EMT Basics class opened in Loyalton this fall. Adult Education program 

received 4.2% COLA increase this year. Moving forward with Paramedic 

Academy, but in need of a Medical Director and Program Director. Part-Time 

mailto:kjacobsen@spjusd.org


2 

SCOE Minutes 

September 21, 2021 

Secretary recently came onboard and is a great asset. New website is currently 

being built, expected to go live mid-October. 

SELPA—BETHKE: Plugging away with student assessments. CPI class next 

month – non-violent crisis intervention class for staff. 

4. Board Member Reports 

None 

5. Public Comment 

MEGAN MESCHERY—Sierra Schools Foundation: Annual Golf Tournament 

coming up on October 2nd. Newsletter is in the works and expected to come out 

around Thanksgiving. 

REID—member of public on Zoom: *comment read from Zoom chat* “At what 

point are we as a common sense community just going to accept that covid is our 

reality and we will all get it. If covid is something you want to avoid, then enter ISP 

or homeschool. Let our kids return to a normal classroom setting without masks 

and the constant threat of being shut down” 

KELLY CHAMPION—parent: Concerns with continued masking in schools. It 

effects student health (i.e. strep throat and sinus infections), emotional and social 

development, and educational advancements. It looks to me like a form of child 

abuse. Many parents, including ours, are looking at alternatives to public schools. 

STACI ARMSTRONG—teacher and parent: Would like to hear responses from the 

board regarding public comments. There are so many comments that warrant a 

response. 

HALL: As much as board members want to engage in discussions during public 

comment, unfortunately there are restrictions on that due to the Brown Act. 

F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the Regular Board Meeting held August 10, 2021 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 08/01/2021 through 08/31/2021 

WRIGHT/STANNARD 

5/0 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

1. New Business  

a. Authorization for Superintendent to enter into Memorandum of Understanding 

with Sierra-Plumas Teacher’s Association for the 2021-2022 School Year, 

Contract 2022-006C 

WRIGHT/POTTER 

MOORE: MOU discussed in Closed Session and ready to approve with 

amendments. 

BERARDI: Amendments include – page 1, paragraph 3; page 2, item 1.4; page 

2, item 2.5 

WRIGHT amended motion to include amendments to the MOU as stated by 

BERARDI. Second by POTTER. 

5/0 

b. Adoption of Resolution 22-004C, Adopting the Gann Limit 

MOORE/WRIGHT 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 

POTTER – AYE 

MOORE – AYE 

HALL – AYE 

WRIGHT – AYE 

STANNARD – AYE 

5/0 



3 

SCOE Minutes 

September 21, 2021 

c. Adoption of Unaudited Actuals for the Fiscal Year End June 30, 2021 

MOORE/STANNARD 

*Overview given by the Business Manager, Nona Griesert 

5/0 

d. Appointment of members of the Student Attendance Review Board as follows: 
1. J. Lon Cooper, Sierra County Public Defender 

2. Sandra Groven, Sierra County District Attorney 

3. Chuck Henson, Sierra County Chief Probation Officer (alternate: Sofia Gonzalez) 

4. Laurie Marsh, Sierra County Behavioral Health (alternate: Cara Bowling) 

5. Sheri Roen, Parent Representative 

6. Jamie Shiltz, Sierra County Social Services (alternates: Kristal Evans, Tamara 

Powers) 

7. Mike Fisher, Sierra County Sheriff (alternate: Brad Dempster) 
(Ed Code 48321 (a) (4) The school district representatives on the county school attendance 

review board shall be nominated by the governing boards of school districts and shall be 

appointed by the county superintendent of schools. All other persons and group 

representatives shall be appointed by the county board of education.) 

STANNARD/POTTER 

5/0 

BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS, EXHIBITS, BOARD BYLAWS 

  MOORE motioned to approve e-l as presented, no changes. Second by POTTER. 

  5/0 

e. 0410—Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities 

1. Board Policy, minor revision 

f. 5141.4—Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

g. 5141.52—Suicide Prevention 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

h. 5145.12—Search and Seizure 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

i. 5145.9—Hate-Motivated Behavior 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

j. 6142.5—Environmental Education 

1. Board Policy, “NEW” 

k. 6162.51—State Academic Achievement Tests 

1. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

l. 7211—Developer Fees 

1. Board Policy, revisions 

2. Administrative Regulation, revisions 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. Next Regular Board Meetings will be held on October 12, 2021 at Downieville School, 

130 School St, Downieville CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session as needed at 

5:00pm and the Regular Board Meetings at 6:00pm. Zoom videoconferencing will also 

be available for the public. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

-“Masks in Schools” as an ongoing item on agendas so the board can engage in 

discussions with the public during meetings 

-County vs. District employees (main concern with evaluations – i.e. County 

employee performing evaluations on District employees and vice versa) 

 



4 

SCOE Minutes 

September 21, 2021 

 

I. ADJOURN at 6:48pm 

MOORE/STANNARD 

5/0 

 

 

 

_______________________________  _______________________________ 

Christina Potter, Clerk    James Berardi, Superintendent 

       Secretary to the County Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00016004 09/10/2021 ACCREDITING COMMISSION FOR SCHOOLS 11-5300 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP FEE 1,100.00 

00016005 09/10/2021 ALPINE FIRE SERVICES, INC. SALES AND SERVICE 01-5600 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION AND 

REPAIR

86.93 

00016006 09/10/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 337.41 

00016007 09/10/2021 AT&T 11-5900 PHONE 174.92 

00016008 09/10/2021 CIT 01-5900 PHONE SYSTEM/MAINTENANCE 773.08 

00016009 09/10/2021 CASAS 11-5810 SITE LICENSE FEE 1,050.00 

00016010 09/10/2021 CPI 01-5300 CPI TRAINING MEMBERSHIP 150.00 

00016011 09/10/2021 EL DORADO COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 01-5300 CSR DUES 1,800.00 

00016012 09/10/2021 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 172.28 

11-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 149.04 321.32 

00016013 09/10/2021 MIKE MOORE 01-5200 PER DIEM 28.00 

00016014 09/10/2021 OFFICE DEPOT 11-4330 OFFICE SUPPLIES 149.83 

00016015 09/10/2021 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 01-5810 GASB 68 FEE 350.00 

00016016 09/10/2021 PITNEY BOWES, INC. 01-5600 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE 23.50 

01-5899 POSTAGE MACHINE LEASE 70.52 94.02 

00016017 09/10/2021 PLUMAS-SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11-5600 BROADBAND SERVICE 109.00 

00016018 09/10/2021 RESOLVE TECHNOLOGY GROUP, INC. 01-5810 TECHNOLOGY AUDIT 3,650.00 

00016019 09/10/2021 SAN JOAQUIN SELPA ATTN: PATTI FARHAT 01-5810 SP. ED INFO SYSTEM 4,000.00 

00016020 09/10/2021 SIERRA BOOSTER 11-5810 ADVERTISEMENT 52.50 

00016021 09/10/2021 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 SEP 21 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,432.01 

76-9576 SEP 21 HEALTH INSURANCE 18,581.79 20,013.80 

00016022 09/10/2021 U.S. BANK 11-4320 PAINT AND SUPPLIES 77.06 

00016023 09/10/2021 U.S. BANK VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 112.69 

11-5200 FUEL EXPENSE 49.70 162.39 

00016024 09/10/2021 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 21.00 

00016025 09/21/2021 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-4300 BANDSAW TIRE 267.05 

11-4300 TRAINING SUPPLIES 1,024.67 

11-4400 TRAINING SUPPLIES 669.91 1,961.63 

00016026 09/21/2021 STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 01-5805 EMPLOYMENT FINGERPRINTING 32.00 

11-5805 EMPLOYMENT FINGERPRINTING 49.00 81.00 

00016027 09/21/2021 GIRARD, EDWARDS, STEVENS & TUCKER LLP 01-5801 LEGAL FEES 85.50 

00016028 09/21/2021 INTERMOUNTAIN DISPOSAL, INC. 11-5500 GARBAGE SERVICE 40.93 

00016029 09/21/2021 OFFICE DEPOT 11-4330 OFFICE SUPPLIES 70.18 

00016030 09/21/2021 JASON PRAKASH 01-4300 LIFE SKILL SUPPLIES 92.81 

00016031 09/21/2021 PRESENCELEARNING, INC. 01-5810 PRESENCE LEARNING 4,906.75 

00016032 09/21/2021 RAY MORGAN COMPANY 01-5600 COPIER MAINT. 18.32 

11-5600 COPIER/MAINTENANCE 20.47 38.79 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2021  7:28AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 09/01/2021 through 09/30/2021

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00016033 09/21/2021 REACHLOCAL, INC 11-5810 MARKETING CAMPAIGN 3,428.56 

00016034 09/21/2021 SELPA ADMINISTRATORS C/O HUMBOLDT - DEL NORTE 

SELPA

01-5300 SELPA DUES 600.00 

Total Number of Checks 31 45,807.41 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 21 19,009.85 01

ADULT EDUCATION 15 8,215.77 11

Payroll Clearing 1 18,581.79 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 31 45,807.41 

.00 

45,807.41 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2021  7:28AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-005C 

 

SUFFICIENCY OF TEXTBOOKS OR INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 

 

WHEREAS, the SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, in order to comply with the 

requirements of Education Code 60119, held a public hearing on October 12, 2021, at 6 o’clock, which 

was on or before the eighth week of school and which did not take place during or immediately 

following school hours, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing by posting it in at least 

three public places within the County stating the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, and; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board encouraged participation by parents/guardians, teachers, members, of the 

community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 

 

WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing detailed the extent to which textbooks and 

instructional materials were provided to all students, including English learners, in the SIERRA 

COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION, and; 

 

WHEREAS, “instructional materials” means all materials that are designed for use by pupils and their 

teachers as a learning resource and help pupils to acquire facts, skills, or opinions or to develop 

cognitive processes.  Each student, including English learners, will have a textbook or instructional 

materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, which may include materials in a digital format but 

shall not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied 

to address a shortage, and;  

 

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student, including 

English learners, that are aligned to the academic content standards and consistent with the cycle and 

content of the curriculum frameworks in the following subjects; 

 
Mathematics    My Math, Grades K-5    McGraw-Hill Education © 2017 

  California Mathematics, Grades 6,7  Macmillan/McGraw-Hill/Glencoe  
   Mathematics Course 1    Prentice Hall © 2013 

Pre-Algebra, Grades 8-12    Prentice Hall  

Algebra II, Grades 8-12     Glencoe  

   Pre Calculus     Houghton Mifflin  

 

   Newly Adopted for 2015-16: 

Mathematics, Course 1, Common Core  Pearson Education, Inc.  

Mathematics, Course 2, Common Core  Pearson Education, Inc. ©2013 

Mathematics, Course 3, Common Core   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2013 

Geometry, Common Core   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2015 

Algebra 1, Common Core, CA   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2015 

Algebra 2, Common Core, CA   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2015 

Calculus, AP Edition    Pearson Education, Inc. ©2014 

Calculus, Graphical, Numerical, Algebraic,  

     5th Edition     Pearson Education, Inc. ©2016 

   Financial Algebra     Cengage Learning ©2011 

 

  



Science **see below 

 

History/  My World, Grades TK-5   Pearson Education, Inc. 

Social Science   Grades 6-8     National Geographic/Cengage 

   Impact, Grades 9-12    McGraw Hill 

   TCI, History Alive! Geography, Grade 9 (Downieville only) 

   American Pageant, AP Government  Cengage    

   Geography, Grades 9-12   Glencoe 

 

 

English/  Mirrors & Windows    EMC Publishing, LLC © 2016 

Language Arts     Continuing with Literature, Levels I-V 

       British Tradition 

(Including    American Tradition 

English Learners) 
   Wonders CA Comprehensive System 

   The Power of Connection   McGraw-Hill Education © 2015-17 

 

**WHEREAS, SCIENCE textbooks and instructional materials are scheduled to be updated through  

the curriculum adoption process this 2021-2022 school year, and; 

 

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each student enrolled in 

foreign language or health classes, and; 

 

WHEREAS, laboratory science equipment was available for science laboratory classes offered in 

grades 9-12, inclusive. 

 

THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED THAT for the 2021-2022 school year, the SIERRA COUNTY 

OFFICE OF EDUCATION has provided each student with sufficient textbooks and instructional 

materials aligned to the academic content standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the 

curriculum frameworks. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF 

EDUCATION held on October 12, 2021, by the following vote: 

 

 

AYES:  ______________________ 

NOES:  ______________________ 

ABSTAIN: ______________________ 

ABSENT: ______________________ 

VACANT: ______________________ 

 

_____________________________ 

Christina Potter, Clerk 

Sierra County Board of Education  



 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED 

SCHOOL DISTRICT 

AND 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF 

EDUCATION 

 
 
 

INJURY & ILLNESS                  

PREVENTION PROGRAM 

(IIPP) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

  
109 BECKWITH ROAD, ROOM #3* P O BOX 955 

LOYALTON, CA 96118 
(530) 993-1660 * FAX (530) 993-0828 

 
9/23/2021 

 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            2 
 

  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

  

 PAGE 

  

INTRODUCTION 

 
3 
 

  
RESPONSIBILITY 4, 5, 6 

  
HAZARD ASSESSMENT/INSPECTION 7 

  
ACCIDENT/EXPOSURE INVESTIGATION 8 

  
HAZARD CORRECTION 8 

  
COMMUNICATION 9,10 

  
TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION 11,12 

  
COMPLIANCE 13 

  
RECORDKEEPING 14,15 

  
SCHOOL SAFETY COORDINATORS 16 

  
REPORT OF UNSAFE CONDITION OR HAZARD 17 

  
HAZARD ASSESSMENT AND CORRECTION RECORD 18 

  
INJURY ASSESSMENT AND CORRECTION RECORD 19 

  
SAFETY TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION RECORD 20 

  
OFFICE/CLASSROOM INSPECTION CHECKLIST 21 

  
INSTRUCTIONS FOR OFFICE/CLASSROOM CHECKLIST 22,23,24 
 
ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION GUIDE                                                        25 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            3 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
In order to maintain a safe and healthful work environment, the Sierra-Plumas Joint 
Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education have developed this Injury 
and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) for all employees. The program is designed to 
comply with the requirements contained in Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations 
§3203 and Section 6401.7 of the California Labor Code. And consists of the following 
eight elements: 
 

Responsibility 
Hazard Assessment/Inspection 
Accident/Exposure Investigation 

Hazard Correction 
Communication 

Training and Instruction 
Compliance 

Recordkeeping 
 

 
Every employer has a legal obligation to provide and maintain a safe and healthful 
workplace for their employees. By making employee safety a high priority for every 
employee we can reduce injuries and illnesses, increase productivity, and promote a 
safer and healthier environment for all individuals employed by Sierra-Plumas Joint 
Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education. 

 
Portions of this guide were adapted from Guide to Developing Workplace Injury and 
Illness Prevention Program, prepared by the Cal/OSHA Consultation Service, CS-1 
revised August 2005.  
 
A copy of the IIPP must be maintained at the district office as well as at each school 
site.  
EMPLOYEE ACCESS TO THE PROGRAM 
 
 
All employees have the right and opportunity to receive and review their employer’s IIPP.  
Sierra Plumas JUSD and Sierra COE will provide access to the Program by doing one of 
the following: 
 

1. Provide access in a reasonable time, place, and manner, but in no event later than 
five business days after the request for access is received from an employee or 
designated representative. 
 

 One printed copy of the plan must be free of charge, although the employer 
may charge a reasonable administrative fee for additional copies within (1) 
year of the previous request and the Program has not been updated with new 
information since the prior copy was provided 

 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            4 
 

2. Provide unobstructed access through a company server or website, which allows an 
employee to review, print, and email the current version of the Program.  

 
Sierra Plumas JUSD and Sierra COE will communicate the right and the procedures to 
access the Program to all employees. 
 
Employees of Sierra Plumas JUSD and Sierra COE can receive and review our IIPP by 
making a written request themselves or designating an authorized representative that 
they give written authorization to make the request on their behalf. The written 
authorization request must include: 

 

 The name and signature of the employee who is authorizing a designated 
representative to access the Program on their behalf 

 The name of the designated representative authorized to receive the Program 
for the employee 

 The date of the request  

 The date when the written authorization will expire (if less than (1) year). 
 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            5 
 

INJURY AND ILLNESS PREVENTION PROGRAM 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
P O BOX 955 * 109 BECKWITH ROAD, ROOM #3 
LOYALTON, CA 96118 
 

School District Name and Address 

 

LARAINE SEI 
P O BOX 955 * 109 BECKWITH ROAD, ROOM #3 
LOYALTON, CA 96118 
 

Name and Contact Information for Individual Completing this form 

 

ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY (Title 8 California Code of Regulations §3203(a) 
(1)) 
 
Our school district’s lead Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) administrator is: 
 

JAMES BERARDI, SUPERINTENDENT 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
P O BOX 955 * 109 BECKWITH ROAD, ROOM #1 
LOYALTON, CA 96118 
530 993-1660 Ext 110 * Fax 530 993-0828 
 
 
 

Co-Administrator’s Name 
 

NONA GRIESERT, BUSINESS MANAGER 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
P O BOX 955 * 109 BECKWITH ROAD, ROOM #1 
LOYALTON, CA 96118 
530 993-1660 Ext 120 * Fax 530 993-0828 

 
 
 
 
  



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            6 
 

The IIPP Administrator James Berardi, Superintendent, Personnel Technician, Laraine 
Sei and school site administers are responsible for implementing and maintaining the 
components of the IIPP program at their school sites. The responsibilities of our IIPP 
Administrator and site administrators include:  
 

 Preparing and updating our district’s IIPP 

 Implementing the provisions in our IIPP 

 Making sure each site has a copy of our IIPP 

 Making sure hazards, injuries and accidents in each site are routinely 
investigated 

 Taking action to mitigate identified hazards 

 Establishing a district wide Health and Safety Committee and designating a 
chairperson 

 Establishing procedures for employee reporting of workplace hazards, 
accidents, injuries and general safety concerns 

 
 Each school in our district has been assigned a safety coordinator. School-site 

safety coordinators are responsible for assisting in implementing and maintaining 
this IIPP at their school sites and for answering employee questions about the 
district’s IIPP. Each school-site safety coordinator has a copy of this IIPP. A list of 
all the district’s school-site safety coordinators who will implement and maintain 
the IIPP at their school sites is attached as Form A.  

 
The responsibilities of our school site safety coordinators include: 
 

 Conducting at a minimum, quarterly safety inspections  

 Participating on the district wide Health & Safety Committee 

 Participating in the mitigation of identified hazards 

 Communicating with employees about safety 
 
The responsibilities of all school employees include:  
 

 Reporting unsafe conditions, work practices or accidents to their supervisors 
or the school site safety coordinator immediately. 

 Following safe work practices 

 Using appropriate personal protective equipment as instructed by their 
supervisors 

 
 

This IIPP applies to all schools in the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and the 
Sierra County Office of Education 
 
  



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            7 
 

HAZARD ASSESSMENT / INSPECTION (Title 8 CCR §3203(a) (4)) 
 
Inspections to identify and evaluate workplace hazards shall be performed by a 
competent observer. Periodic inspections to identify and evaluate hazards in our 
schools sites will be performed by one or more of the following checked individuals: 
 
School-site safety coordinators at their school sites and/or the site administrator,  
District’s IIPP Administrator OR superintendent’s designee. 
 
Inspections are performed according to the following schedule:  
 

 When we initially established our IIPP, site wide safety inspections 

 Whenever new substances, processes, procedures or equipment which present 
potential new hazards are introduced into our workplace 

 Whenever new, previously unidentified hazards are recognized 

 Whenever occupational injuries and illnesses occur 

 Whenever workplace conditions warrant an inspection 

 When we hire and/or reassign permanent or intermittent employees to processes, 
operations, or tasks for which a hazard evaluation has not been previously 
conducted. 

 
There are two types of inspections: overall facility inspections and specific work area inspections.  For 
the purpose of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and Sierra County Office of Education 
IIPP, the following inspections are to be conducted: 
 

1. The overall facility inspection will be performed annually and when: 
a. any new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced to the 

workplace that have occupational hazard potential.  
b. a previously unrecognized hazard is discovered. 
c. an accident or illness occurs.  

2. Specific work area inspection by each Site or Department periodically, but not less than 
annually.  

 
 
 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            8 
 

ACCIDENT/EXPOSURE INVESTIGATIONS (Title 8 CCR §3203(a) (5)) 

Investigations of workplace accidents, hazardous substance exposures and near 
accidents will be conducted by: 

JAMES BERARDI, Superintendent, Laraine Sei, Personnel Technician, or Nona 
Griesert, Business Manager 
Name and Job Title  

Our procedures for investigating workplace accidents and hazardous substance 
exposures include: (see page 22) 

 Visiting the scene as soon as possible 

 Interviewing injured employees and witnesses 

 Determining the cause of the accident/exposure 

 Examining the workplace and the incident for underlying causes associated with 
the accident/exposure 

 Taking corrective action to prevent the accident/exposure from reoccurring 

 Recording the findings and actions taken at health and safety committee meetings 
 

All occupational injuries, illnesses, or exposures to hazardous substances must be 
reported to Human Resources within 24 hours after the incident becomes known to the 
Supervisor. For those injuries that cause an amputation, loss of an eye, or any serious 
degree of permanent disfigurement, that requires inpatient hospitalization other than 
medical observation or diagnostic testing but does not include any injury or illness or 
death caused by an accident on a public street or highway, unless the accident occurred 
in a construction zone, Human Resources will contact Cal/OSHA within 8 hours. 
 
 
HAZARD CORRECTION (Title 8 CCR §3203(a) (6)) 

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures will be corrected in a 
timely manner based on the severity of the hazards. Hazards will be corrected 
according to the following procedures: 

 When observed or discovered; and 

 When an imminent hazard exists which cannot be immediately abated without 
endangering employee(s) and/or property, we will remove all exposed employees 
from the area except those necessary to correct the existing condition. Employees 
who are required to correct the hazardous condition will be provided with the 
necessary protection and training. 

 We have identified the following potential hazards in our schools but not limited to: 
 

 Slip and fall hazards and ladder safety 
 Chemicals covered under Cal/OSHA’s Hazard Communication standard, 

including pesticides, cleaning products, lab chemicals, etc. 
 Lead paint 
 Asbestos 
 Ergonomic hazards 
 Infectious diseases, including blood borne and aerosol transmissible 

diseases 
 Outdoor heat  



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            9 
 

 Violence 
 Indoor air quality 
 Power tools and machinery hazards, including electrical safety, lock-out tag-

out of machinery, machine guarding, etc. 
 

The IIPP Administrator, site administrator and/or school site safety coordinator will 
ensure that those current employees and/or new employees with exposure potential to 
these or other hazards will be trained by workshops, on-line course classes, on-site 
trainings, or other effective instruction. 
 
 

COMMUNICATION WITH EMPLOYEES ABOUT SAFETY (Title 8 CCR §3203(a) (3))  
 
All supervisors, school site safety coordinators, and/or site administrators are 
responsible for communicating with their employees about occupational safety and 
health in a form readily understandable by all employees. Our communication system 
encourages all employees to inform supervisors, school site safety coordinator and/or 
site administrator, about workplace hazards without fear of reprisal. 

Our communication system includes all of the following items: 

 New employee orientation including a discussion of safety and health policies and 
procedures 

 Follow-through by supervisors to ensure effectiveness 

 Worksite-specific health and safety training 

 Regularly scheduled safety committee meetings will be held once per month or at 
minimum once a quarter.  

 Effective communication of safety and health concerns between employees and 
supervisors, including language translation, will take place in one or all of the 
following: 

o Post and/or distribute safety information to school sites for distribution to 
employees 

o Site Administrators can include safety tip in staff meetings. 
o Safety Tips can be posted in staff rooms or handed out to employees 
o Periodic emails may be used to send out important safety information to 

employees.  

 A system for employees to anonymously inform administration about workplace 
hazards.  This system involves:  1) employees may submit concerns/safety issues 
directly to school administrator’s office or the school safety coordinator 2) Report of 
Unsafe Condition or Hazard form (see Page 14), and a copy is provided in the 
employee new hire orientation binder. Copies also located at each school site main 
office.  

 Our health and safety committee meetings are held more frequently as deemed 
necessary by the creation of hazards or occurrence of injuries and illnesses 

 Other methods we use to ensure communication with and involvement of 
employees include:  follow up with staff and/or administrators on safety concerns 

  
AND 

  



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            10 
 

Our district also elects to use a health and safety committee to meet all the 
requirements of Title 8 CCR §3203(c) (1) – (7), thereby complying with the 
communication requirements of Title 8 CCR §3203(a) (3). 
 
 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            11 
 

TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION (Title 8 CCR §3203(a) (7)) 

All employees, including supervisors, will have training and instruction on general and 
job-specific safety and health practices. Training and instruction is provided according 
the following schedule:  

When our IIPP was first established. 

 To all new employees. 

 To all employees given new job assignments for which training has not previously 
provided 

 Whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are introduced 
to the school district and represent a new hazard 

 Whenever anyone is made aware of a new or previously unrecognized hazard 

 To supervisors to familiarize them with the safety and health hazards to which 
employees under their immediate direction and control may be exposed 

 To all employees about the hazards specific to each employee's job assignment. 

All employees will complete the following safety trainings upon onset of employment 
and again as is required by Cal OSHA regulations: 

1.   Fire Safety, Fire Extinguisher, and Fire Prevention. 
 
2.  Emergency Preparedness 
 
3.   Hazard Communication - Globally Harmonizing System (GHS) and Safety    

Data Sheets (SDS).  
 
4.   Injury & Illness Prevention Program 
 
5.   Blood Borne Pathogens 
 
6.   AB1825 Sexual Harassment - For Supervisory employees 
 
7.   SB1343 Sexual Harassment – For non-supervisory employees. 
 
8.   Mandated Reporter 

 
 
Safety training will also include, but is not limited to: 

 Provisions for medical services and first aid, including emergency procedures.  
 Proper housekeeping, such as keeping stairways and aisles clear, keeping work 

areas neat and orderly, and promptly cleaning up spills. 
 The availability of toilet, hand-washing, and drinking water facilities. 
 Prohibiting horseplay, scuffling, or other acts that adversely influence safety.  
 Proper storage to prevent:  

o stacking goods in an unstable manner  
o Storing materials and good against doors, exits, for extinguishing equipment 

and electrical panels.  



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            12 
 

Where applicable, our training will also include but not limited to: 

 The prevention of musculoskeletal disorders, including proper lifting techniques 
 The use of appropriate clothing, including gloves, footwear, and personal 

protective equipment 
 Information about chemical hazards to which employees could be exposed and 

other hazard communication program information 
 Proper food and beverage storage to prevent them from becoming contaminated 
 On any other topics listed in the Hazard Correction section of this plan 
 In addition, we provide specific instructions to all employees regarding hazards 

unique to their job assignment, to the extent that such information was not already 
covered in other trainings. 

Training will occur in the following applications:  

1. General Campus-Wide Training Sessions. 
2. Safety Meetings.  
3. Individual employee training for specific job tasks. 
4. Through Keenan SafesSchools Online training.  

Training is an on-going process that will focus on specific employee jobs and 
procedures.  The main point to safety training is to prevent unsafe situations, 
procedures, or acts.  Always document any training, regardless of length or importance. 
Example Training Logs should be completed when safety training is provided.  Copies 
of the completed training logs should be forwarded to Human Resources.  The live 
trainings can be tracked on the Keenan SafeSchools Online Training Program. 

 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            13 
 

EMPLOYEE COMPLIANCE WITH SAFETY PROCEDURES  (Title 8 CCR §3203(a) 
(2))  
 
Site Administrators are responsible for ensuring that all safety and health policies and 
procedures are clearly communicated and understood by all employees. Supervisors 
and administrators are expected to enforce the rules fairly and uniformly. 
 
All district employees, including supervisors, are responsible for complying with safe 
and healthful work practices. Our system of ensuring that all employees comply with 
these practices includes all of the following checked practices: 
 

 Informing employees of the provisions of our IIPP 

 Evaluating the safety performance of all employees 

 Providing training to employees whose safety performance is deficient 

 Recognizing employees who perform safe and healthful work practices. This 
recognition is accomplished by the decision of Site Administrators or Superintendent 

 Disciplining employees for failure to comply with safe and healthful work practices.  
The following outlines our disciplinary process: 1) oral notice;  2) written notice; 3) 
disciplinary action 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and the Sierra County Office of Education will 
actively enforce the IIPP.  An employee that fails to recognize safety rules and safe work 
practices, shall be disciplined.  Any action taken will not violate employee rights under 
Cal/OSHA regulations and will be enforced in a non-discriminatory fashion.   Disciplinary 
action (consistent with bargaining unit agreements) will include, but not be limited to, the 
following: 
 

1. Retraining  
2. Warning  
3. Warning with reprimand placed in personnel file  
4. Suspension from work with no compensation and record added to personnel file  
5. Discontinue employment with record added to personnel file  

  

http://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh/dosh_publications/IIPP.html#10


 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            14 
 

RECORDKEEPING AND DOCUMENTATION (Title 8 CCR 3203(b)) 
 

 
Recordkeeping is critical for demonstrating the effort of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified 
School District and Sierra County Office of Education towards safety and program 
implementation.  
 
Many standards and regulations of Cal/OSHA contain requirements for the maintenance 
and retention of records for occupational injuries and illnesses, medical surveillance, 
exposure monitoring, inspections, and other activities relevant to occupational health and 
safety.  To comply with these regulations, as well as to demonstrate that the critical 
elements of this IIPP are being implemented, the following records will be kept on file in 
the listed Department for at least the length of time indicated below: 
 

1. Copies of IIPP Safety Inspection Forms, Unsafe Conditions Form and 
Hazard Mitigation Log.  Retain for 2 years and maintained by Departments and 
Maintenance and Operations. 

 
 2. Copies of Accident Investigation Forms.  Retain for 2 years 
  

3. Copies of Employee Training Sign-in Sheets and related training 
documents.  Retain for duration of each individual's employment by Human 
Resources. 

 
 4. Copies of Safety Postings and Safety Committee Meeting Minutes and 

Agendas.  Retain 2 years by Human Resources. 
 

5. Copies of Employee Exposure Records, or other required Employee 
Health and Safety Records.  Retain for 30 years or for the duration of each 
individual's employment, if greater than 30 years.  These records will be 
maintained in Human Resources. 

 
The Safety Coordinator will be responsible for ensuring that all relevant records are 
completed and kept as required by this program and/or Cal/OSHA.  A safe and healthy 
workplace is the goal of everyone at Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District and 
Sierra County Office of Education, with responsibility shared by management and staff 
alike.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The master copy of this IIPP can be found at: DISTRICT OFFICE/SCOE OFFICE 

Other copies of the IIPP can be found at: http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org  
 

  

http://www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org/


 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            16 
 

Form A:  School Site Safety Coordinators 

The following school-site safety coordinators are responsible for maintaining our 
district’s Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP) and communicating with 
employees about our IIPP at their sites: 
 

SCHOOL SAFETY COORDINATOR DATE  

  ASSIGNED 

   

LOYALTON ELEMENTARY 
School Site 

RICHARD JAQUEZ 
BRIAN DEVLIN  

LOYALTON MIDDLE former  site 
School Site 

RICHARD JAQUEZ 
Name of Coordinator  

LOYALTON JR/SR HIGH/SIERRA PASS 
School Site 

FILIMON MARTINEZ 
RICHARD MCCOLLUM      
Name of Coordinator  

DOWNIEVILLE K-12 
School Site 

TOM POTTER 
Name of Coordinator  

DISTRICT/COUNTY OFFICE 
School Site 

NONA GRIESERT 
Name of Coordinator  

SEIRRA PLUMAS SITES 
School Site 

JAMES BERARDI/LARAINE 
SEI 
Name of Coordinator  

LOYALTON ELEMENTARY  SPECIAL 
ED 
School Site 

RICHARD JAQUEZ                                         

Name of Coordinator 

 
School Site Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

      
School Site 

      
Name of Coordinator  

   

   

   

   

 

  



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            17 
 

 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
109 Beckwith Road, Room #3 * P O Box 955 

Loyalton, CA  96118 
530 993-1660 * Fax 530 993-0828 

www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 
 

 
 

REPORT OF UNSAFE CONDITION OR HAZARD 

 
Optional: Employees may submit this form anonymously by forwarding to the Superintendent’s Office, Sierra-
Plumas Joint Unified School District/Sierra County Office of Education, P O Box 955, Loyalton, CA 96118 
 
Employee's Name:   _____________________________________________________________________________   
 
Job Title: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Location of condition believed to be unsafe or hazardous: _______________________________________________ 
 
Date and time condition or hazard observed:  _________________________________________________________ 
 
Description of unsafe condition or hazard: 
 

 

 

 
What changes would you recommend to correct the condition or hazard?   
 

 

 

 

 
Optional: 
Signature of Employee:    Date: 
   

District/County Superintendent of Schools Office's Response: 
 
Name of Person Investigating Report:  _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Results of investigation (what was found? was condition unsafe or a hazard?): (attach additional sheets if necessary) 
 

 

 

 

 
 
Action taken to correct hazard or unsafe condition, if appropriate (or, alternative, information provided to employees as 
to why condition was not unsafe or hazardous):  (attach additional sheets if necessary) 
 

 

 

 

 
 
Signature of Person Investigating Report: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Revised:  

 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            18 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

109 Beckwith Road, Room #3 * P O Box 955 
 Loyalton, CA 96118 

530 993-1660 * Fax 530 993-0828 
www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 

 

HAZARD ASSESSMENT AND CORRECTION RECORD 

To be used in correlation with the Office/Classroom Inspection Checklist. 

  
 
 

Date of Inspection: Person Conducting Inspection: 
 

Unsafe Condition or Work Practice: 
 
 
 
 
 

Corrective Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Inspection: Person Conducting Inspection: 
 

Unsafe Condition or Work Practice: 
 
 
 
 
 

Corrective Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
 

Date of Inspection: Person Conducting Inspection:  
 

Unsafe Condition or Work Practice: 
 
 
 
 
 

Corrective Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            19 
 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

109 Beckwith Road, Room #3 * P O Box 955 
Loyalton, CA 96118 

530 993-1660 * Fax 530 993-0828 
www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 

INJURY ASSESSMENT 

AND CORRECTION RECORD   

 
(First section to be filled out by Safety Administrator and then sent to injured employee’s supervisor) 

 
Employee Name:   Position: _________________ 
 
Type of Injury:  Date of Injury: _____________ 
 
Location of Injury:    _________________________ 
 
Explain How Injury Happened:    _________________________ 
 
  _________________________ 
 
  _________________________ 
 
 __________________________ 
 

Date of Inspection: _____________________________  Person Conducting Inspection: ______ 
 
 ______________________________ 
Unsafe Condition or Work Practice: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
        
Corrective Action Taken: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 
 
Signature:    Date:  ________________________ 
 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            20 
 

109 Beckwith Road, Room #3 * P O Box 955 
Loyalton, CA 96118 

530 993-1660 * Fax 530 993-0828 
 

www.sierracountyofficeofeducation.org 
 

SAFETY TRAINING AND INSTRUCTION RECORD 
 
 

Training Date:         

Topic and/or Type of Training:         

Trainer(s):         

Please attach topic of discussion and anything passed out to employees. 

(Employee’s need to sign-in.) 
 

Employee Print Employee Signature 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Attach any topic and/or training materials to this sheet  

 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            21 
 

OFFICE/CLASSROOM INSPECTION CHECKLIST 
WORKSITE:    DATE:    

BUILDING:      ROOM:     

NAME(S):  ____________________________________________________________________________  

Instructions:  Check each item below as "Satisfactory or "Unsatisfactory." Add any pertinent comments 
and the location of hazards in the space provided for each item checked "Unsatisfactory." 
                                                                Satisfactory    Unsatisfactory    N/A 

 

        Comment/Location              

FLOORS 

No wet/slip, fall hazard                                     

No trip hazard     

No cords across walkway    

Other            

 
 

STAIRS – RAMPS (if applicable) 

Lighting adequate                   

Non-slip surface                   

Handrails - available and secure                    

Other                                

 

GENERAL SAFETY 

No Aisles  Obstructed      

Area free of falling hazards      

First Aid material available     

Emergency Lighting functioning     

Lighting okay     

Ladders/Stools in good condition     

Housekeeping is good     

Emergency phone numbers posted     

Other             

 

FIRE EQUIPMENT/EXITS 

Fire extinguishers accessible     

Fire extinguishers tagged/serviced     

Exits properly illuminated     

Exits clear and unobstructed     

Other ________________________________                                        

  

FIRE HAZARDS 

Flammable aerosols and liquids                                                               

Stored and handled properly     

Storage areas labeled     

No Defective electrical cords     

Other                           

 

ELECTRICAL HAZARDS 

Cords are put away after use     

No improper use of extension cords               

No extension cords plugged in that aren’t  

 being utilized     

Outlets at sinks are GFI Protected                  

All outlet and switch covers in place                                               

Electrical panels are unobstructed                  

 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

MSDS's available     

Containers properly labeled     

Containers properly stored     

Other        

 

INSPECTOR(S) SIGNATURE: ____________________________________________________________ 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            22 
 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

OFFICE/CLASSROOM INSPECTION CHECKLIST 
 

FLOORS: 
Look for source of continual slip fall hazards such as leaking doorways, water draining from 
under sinks, refrigerators, or other equipment.   
 
Look for trip hazards such as buckling or torn carpet or mats, or cords across walkways. 
 

STAIRS AND RAMPS: 

Look around work area and surrounding areas frequently used.  Look to see if ramps are 
outlined to indicate change in elevation. 
 
Check if stair edges are chipped or rounded off making it easy to slip off the edge of steps. 
 
Check if hand rails are secure and not loose.   
 
Look around work area and surrounding areas for adequate lighting at stairs and ramps. 

 

GENERAL SAFETY: 

Check if top of bookshelves or cabinets are overloaded with stored items.  If so remove 
items.  
 
Check if stacks of stored items are stable.  If not, make stable. 
 
Remove or make secure any stored items that may fall and hit students or employees in the 
event of an earthquake. 
 
Check the location of the nearest First Aid Station.  Check if the station is properly stocked. 
 
Ask custodial or administration staff for the location of emergency lighting in the immediate 
work area or surrounding areas.  Most emergency lighting will be in the interior halls or 
windowless rooms.   
 
Ask custodial or administration staff how to test battery operated emergency lighting in the 
area. 
 
Check light fixtures for any exposed wires, any flickering (may indicate an electrical short), 
any smoking or, odor. 
 
Check stools and step ladders for stability.  All rubber feet should be in place to prevent 
slipping.  Damaged stools and ladders should be removed from use immediately.  NEVER 
USE THE TOP STEP!!!! 
 
All areas should be neat and orderly.  Hallway should not be used for storage.  Walkways 
should be clear of trip fall or slip fall hazards.   



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            23 
 

 
Emergency phone numbers for the local contact in addition to 911 should be posted in the 
classrooms.  
 
Check with the local administration staff for emergency procedures.  

 
 
FIRE EQUIPMENT/EXITS: 
Know the location of the nearest fire extinguisher. 
 

No items should be hung on or blocking fire extinguishers. 
 

Fire extinguishers should be hung in an easily accessible location approximately 5 feet 
above the floor.   
 

The location of the fire extinguisher should be marked with a sign. 
 

Check the fire extinguisher tag to see if it has been serviced within the last year.  If it has 
not, the extinguisher is in need of service. 
 

Check the pressure gauge to see if the needle is in the green area of the gauge.  If it is not, 
the extinguisher is in need of service. 
 

Check if exits are marked with exit signs.   
 

Check if the natural light during normal operating hours provides enough light to illuminate 
the exit sign in the event of a power failure.  If not, the exit sign should be battery powered. 
 

Remove any obstructions from the exits. 
 

FIRE HAZARDS: 

Remove any flammable aerosols and liquids from the classrooms.   
 

Flammable aerosols and liquids should be stored in a flammable liquid storage cabinet in the 
custodian area only.   
 

Check for any frayed, cut, or otherwise damaged electrical cord.  If a light or appliance has a 
damaged cord, the light or appliance should be removed from the classroom. 
 

ELECTRICAL HAZARDS: 

Extension cord should not be used for permanent power to equipment; additional permanent 
electrical outlets should be provided. 
 

Eliminate use of multiple extension cords and surge bars. 
 

Never use multiple extension cords and surge bars end to end. 
 

Check that extension cords are unplugged when there are no appliances or equipment 
attached. 



 

Injury and Illness Prevention Program (rev 9/30/2021)            24 
 

 

Check if all electrical outlets at sinks are equipped with GFI, that is “Test” and “Reset” 
buttons.  Push the “Test” and “Reset” buttons to see if they work.  When the “Test” button is 
pushed there should be no electrical power to the outlet.  After testing, push the “Reset” 
button to resume power to the outlet. 
 

Check that all outlet and switch plate covers are in place and not broken thereby exposing 
live electrical wires. 

 

Check that the electrical panel is not blocked by signs or art work and the panel is easily 
accessible to emergency response personnel. 
 

 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: 

There should be no hazardous materials (cleaning supplies, commercial paints, solvents, 
etc.) in the classrooms.   
 
Hazardous materials should be stored in the custodial areas. 
 
Safety Data Sheets (SDS) should be in a predetermined location for all hazardous materials.  
(In the same room supplies are used and stored.) 
 
All containers, especially secondary containers (containers used for smaller amounts of 
materials), should be clearly labeled with the content name.  EVEN WATER!!!   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
z:IIPP doc;7/02/2012;rev 10/15/2013; rev name change 2/2016; rev name change 11/2017 
 doc:worker comp/IIPP doc; rev and update name change 11/2019, rev 9/23/2021 

 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION              ORGANIZATION NO. 207.27 

 

 

TECHNOLOGY SPECIALIST 

DEFINITION 

Under the general supervision of the Superintendent, the Technology Specialist supports 

technology, installs and configures network systems and servers. The Technology Specialist 

works with Internet-related equipment and Windows, Apple, and other Operating Systems as 

needed in network environments. This shall include maintaining computer networks and web 

sites, providing staff development, technical assistance, and information/learning resources to 

the District. Establish virus protection and other measures to assure efficient use of technology 

and to secure systems and individual computers from inappropriate access or use. Maintain 

computers and printers at specific locations as assigned. Diagnose problems and repair 

computer hardware as assigned. Perform additional/other technology services as assigned. 

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 

This job description is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all duties, knowledge or abilities 

associated with this classification but intended to accurately reflect the principal job elements. 

1. Maintain and update virus software on all computers  

2. Provide assistance to staff on utilizing computer and software programs; assist personnel 

with email access, software programs, troubleshoot printer/equipment faulty service and 

isolate other related technology matters 

3. Maintain accurate IP address listings  

4. Maintain accurate inventory of all computers, printers and associated hardware/software. 

Update and/or install approved software to workstations as appropriate 

5. Assist staff with identification and storage of obsolete/surplus inventory 

6. Research and serve as a resource to determine appropriate computer equipment, computer 

supplies and related purchases; order supplies as applicable 

7. Assist staff with Polycom equipment or other video conferencing equipment  

8. Provision user accounts and manage security for local domains, email and a variety of 

business and student information systems (cloud and on premise) 

9. Develop and maintain district web sites 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

1. General knowledge of information technology equipment and software including current 

practices and procedures  

2. Ability to communicate effectively both orally and in writing  

3. Ability to act independently to address technology-related equipment/software service 

4. Maintain effective working relationship with personnel; maintain confidentiality 

5. Stay current with IT trends, network designs, and products 

6. Preferred: Bachelor’s degree and industry certifications in technology 

7. Two  years of progressive experience with microcomputers and/or network/internet systems 

8. Must be able to plan and prioritize work to handle multiple tasks and requests 



PHYSICAL REQUIREMENTS 

Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard and standard office equipment  
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time  
Reaching overhead, above the shoulders and horizontally to retrieve and store materials  
Lifting, pushing, pulling and carrying objects; light lifting 30-40 lbs  
Bending at the waist, kneeling and squatting  
Hearing and speaking to exchange information on the telephone or in person  
Near and far visual acuity/depth perception  
Driving a vehicle to conduct work as necessary  
 
 
 

 

 

Date proposed 10/12/21 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
 TECHNOLOGY SALARY SCHEDULE

Position A B C D E F G H I J
Yr 5 Yr 8 Yr 11 Yr 14 Yr 17 Yr 20

Technology Director 40.69 42.32 44.01 45.77 47.60 49.50 51.48 53.54 55.68 57.91

*Technology Specialist 23.73 24.80 25.91 27.08 28.30 29.57 30.90 32.29 33.75 35.27

*Proposed October 12, 2021



Addendum October 12, 2021 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

and 

JAMES BERARDI 

This addendum to the employment Agreement is made and entered into on July 1, 2021, between 

the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, hereinafter “District,” the Sierra County Board 

of Education, hereinafter “County Board”, and James Berardi, hereinafter “District 

Superintendent.” 

This addendum to the employment Agreement is extended to June 30, 2023, by mutual 

agreement with the Sierra County Board of Education and the District Governing Board and 

District Superintendent. 

TERM 

The District hereby extends the District Superintendent Employment Agreement for a term of 

two (2) years, commencing July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2023, subject to the terms and 

conditions set forth in the original Agreement signed and dated by District, County Board and 

County Superintendent, on August 13, 2019.  

BASE SALARY 

District 

Subject to the terms and conditions of the original Agreement signed and dated August 13, 2019, 

the District shall pay District Superintendent a salary of One Hundred Thirty One Thousand 

Eight Hundred Eighteen dollars ($131,818) for the term of the Agreement for contract year July 

1, 2021, to June 30, 2022, excluding employer paid benefits, i.e. Worker’s Compensation, State 

Unemployment Insurance, OASDI, and Medicare for the term of this Agreement.  Said salary 

includes previous car allowance of $4,500 per year and reflects an increase of 1.5%.  The District 

shall pay District Superintendent a salary of One Hundred Thirty Four Thousand one hundred 

Seventy dollars ($134,170) for the term of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. Said salary reflects an 

increase of 1.5% over the previous fiscal year. The District Superintendent’s daily rate shall be 

computed by dividing the annual salary by 186. Said salary shall be payable in twelve (12) equal 

monthly payments payable  on the last working day of each calendar month with the first 

payment on July 31, 2021.  When only a portion of any year or month is served, the District 

Superintendent’s salary shall be prorated to reflect such service. 

2022-012C/2022-009D



Z:/Contracts_Agreements/Supt Contract Addendum 2021-23 
Page 2 

County Board 

The County Board shall pay the County Superintendent a salary of Twenty-Five Thousand 

dollars ($25,000) for the term of July 1, 2021, to June 30, 2023, excluding employer paid 

benefits, i.e. Worker’s Compensation, State Unemployment Insurance, OASDI, and Medicare for 

the term of this Agreement. The County Superintendent’s daily rate shall be computed by 

dividing the annual salary by 34. Said salary shall be payable in twelve (12) equal monthly 

payments payable on the last working day of each calendar month with the first payment on July 

31, 2021.  When only a portion of any year or month is served, the District Superintendent’s 

salary shall be prorated to reflect such service. 

All other terms, conditions and provisions of the original Agreement signed and dated September 

21, 2021, shall remain in force as mutually agreed upon by District, County Board and County 

Superintendent. 

Dated: October 12, 2021 _____________________________________ 

Patty Hall, President 

Sierra County Board of Education 

Governing Board 

Dated: October 12, 2021 _____________________________________ 

Michael I. Moore, President 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District  

Governing Board 

Dated: October 12, 2021 _____________________________________ 

James Berardi 



CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – October 12, 2021 

 

 

Note:  Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 

board bylaws, and/or exhibits.  Editorial changes have also been made.  Districts and county offices of education 

should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
Board Policy 0470 - COVID-19 Mitigation Plan 

Policy updated to add new note to reflect that districts are obligated to comply with COVID-19 mitigation 

requirements from multiple jurisdictional authorities including the California Department of Public Health 

(CDPH), the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA), and local health authorities, 

to reflect guidance from CDPH and Cal/OSHA's COVID-19 prevention program, and reflect requirements 

for districts to create and post COVID-19 safety plans.  Policy updated to direct the Superintendent and/or 

designee to establish and maintain a COVID-19 safety plan that complies with public health guidance of 

CDPH, the requirements of Cal/OSHA, any orders of state or local health authorities, and any other applicable 

law and/or health order(s) and to omit specific details regarding COVID-19 mitigation practices due to the 

evolving nature of public health guidance.  Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 86, 2021) and NEW 

LAW (AB 130, 2021) requiring the reporting of specified COVID-19 cases to CDPH and requiring the 

reporting of other information to the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE).  Policy 

updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 86, 2021) and NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) requiring districts that receive 

Extended Learning Opportunities (ELO) grant funding to implement a learning recovery program that 

provides supplemental instruction, support for social-emotional well-being, and to the maximum extent 

permissible as specified in U.S. Department of Agriculture guidelines, meals and snacks, to eligible students.  

Policy also updated to include promising practices for reengaging chronically absent students and to direct 

the Superintendent or designee to ensure the continuity of instruction for students who may be under a 

quarantine order to stay home by offering such students independent study or other instructional delivery 

channels that allows the student to continue to participate in the instructional program to the greatest extent 

possible. 

 
 
Board Policy 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) requiring districts applying to the Superintendent of 

Public Instruction to obtain apportionment credit for days and minutes lost due to emergency closure after 

September 1, 2021 to certify in an affidavit that the district has a plan for offering independent study within 

10 days of school closure to impacted students. Policy also updated to reflect requirement that the plan for 

independent study address the establishment, within a reasonable time, of independent study master 

agreements and require the reopening in person once allowable under direction from the city or county health 

officer.   

 

 

Board Policy 4131 - Staff Development 

Policy updated to incorporate concepts of student well-being and social-emotional development and learning 

as it relates to professional development, to clarify that the development of the staff development program 

includes creating, reviewing and amending the program, to reflect the State Board of Education's California 

Digital Learning Integration and Standards Guidance regarding staff development in the use of technologies, 

to reference NEW LAW (AB 130, 2021) regarding requirements for districts offering technology-based 

instruction pursuant to an independent study program, and to expand the list of characteristics that are 

included in diverse student populations as related to staff development in meeting the needs of such students. 

Policy also updated to enhance staff development regarding school climate to include acceptance, civility, 

and positive behavioral interventions and supports, and staff development regarding student's mental and 

physical health to include social-emotional learning and trauma-informed practices. 



1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans 
Policy 0470: COVID-19 Mitigation Plan 

 

Original Adopted Date: 08/11/2020 | Last Reviewed Date: 08/11/2020  
 

Note:  The following policy is intended for use during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and supersedes 
conflicting provisions in other district policies and administrative regulations, thereby eliminating the need to 
temporarily revise multiple policies.  When the Governing Board determines, consistent with state and local orders 
from health officials, that the need for this policy no longer exists, the following policy should be removed from 
the district's policy manual. 
 
Due to the unexpected nature of the pandemic, the evolving circumstances, and rapidly changing health and safety 
guidance regarding COVID-19, this policy has been revised to refer directly to the state resources that serve as 
both mandatory and recommended guidance to districts during the pandemic.  Districts are encouraged to consult 
with local health officials, staff, students, parents/guardians, neighboring school districts, and the county office of 
education in comprehensive planning for safe operations. 
 
This policy is not intended to serve as or supersede the District's COVID-19 Prevention Program ("CPP") required 
by the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA), as described below, or the District's 
Injury and Illness Prevention Program ("IIPP").  Rather, this policy should supplement and support the IIPP.  See 
BP/AR 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety. 
 
This policy involves a number of working conditions that are often addressed in collective bargaining agreements 
and, as such, may be subject to negotiations with employee organizations. 

 
The following policy establishes actions that will be taken by the district to provide a safe 
learning and working environment during the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, and shall 
supersede any conflicting language in existing district policies or administrative regulations until 
the Governing Board of Education determines that the need for this policy no longer exists.   The 
Board acknowledges that, due to the evolving nature of the pandemic, federal, state, and local 
orders impacting district operations are subject to change without notice.   In the event that any 
federal, or state, law and/or order or local order may conflict with this policy, the law or order 
shall govern. 
 
The Board may also adopt resolutions or take other actions as needed to respond to such orders 
or provide further direction during the pandemic. 
 
The Board recognizes that students and staff have the right to a safe campus that protects their 
physical and psychological health and well-being.  School campuses shall only be open when 
deemed safe for in-person instruction.  The Board's decision to reopen school campuses for 
classes, before or after school programs, child care centers, and/or preschool programs shall be 
made in consultation with state and local health officials, the county office of education, and 
neighboring school districts.  The district shall evaluate its capacity to implement safety 
precautions and to conduct full or partial school operations, and shall consider student, 
parent/guardian, and community input. 
 
Prior to the return to on-campus teaching and learning, the Superintendent or designee shall 
provide to students, parents/guardians, and staff current information about COVID-19, including 
its symptoms, how it is transmitted, how to prevent transmission, the current recommendations 
from the state and local departments of public health, and any other information and/or resources 
to prepare for a safe return to on-campus teaching and learning. The Superintendent or designee 



2 
 

shall also provide information on the processes and protocols the district will follow to minimize 
the health risks associated with COVID-19. 
 
Student Support 
 
The 
(cf. 2210 - Administrative Discretion Regarding Board recognizes that the consequences of the COVID-19 
pandemic, including fear for one's safety, the economic crisis, the loss of school-based 
relationships, and disruptions in student learning, impact all students but may have a 
disproportionate effect on the youngest students, students with disabilities, those students most 
vulnerable to basic needs insecurity or child abuse and neglect, and other at-risk students. 
 
As school campuses reopen, staff shall provide a caring and nurturing educational environment for 
students. The district may provide instruction on social-emotional well-being to all students, 
including information on how to deal with stress and anxiety in healthy ways and the importance 
of emotional well-being for academic success. 
 
Staff shall pay careful attention to students' increased mental health concerns.  Counseling, other 
support services, and/or referrals to other agencies shall be available to assist students in dealing 
with the social and emotional effects of COVID-19, such as stress, anxiety, depression, grief, social 
isolation, and post-traumatic stress disorder. 
 
As needed, the district may provide referrals of students and families to basic needs assistance or 
social services, and may assess students for eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program 
or assistance under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that staff understand their obligations as mandated 
reporters to report suspected child abuse or neglect, regardless of whether the student is on campus 
or participating in distance learning. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may provide information to staff and parents/guardians regarding 
how to provide mental health support to students. The Superintendent or designee may also provide 
counseling to staff who are experiencing emotional difficulties as a result of COVID-19. 
 
Evaluation of Academic Progress Following Campus Closure 
 
Upon return to on-campus instruction following an extended campus closure, the Superintendent 
or designee shall evaluate the impact of the campus closure on students' academic progress.  Such 
evaluation may: Policy) 

1. Address student-specific needs arising from the transition back into on-campus 
instruction 
  

2.  Consider whether or not a student has experienced a regression of skills and/or lack of 
progress 
  

3.  If regression and/or a lack of progress is present, identify opportunities for recovery, 
including supplemental educational services and/or new or different support services 



3 
 

For students with disabilities, the evaluation of academic progress shall also be used to determine 
whether an additional or revised individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan is 
needed for the student to be academically successful when returning to on-campus instruction. The 
Superintendent or designee may prioritize urgent student need in scheduling initial and triennial 
assessments and annual IEP meetings. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure district 
compliance with all procedural timelines for IEPs and Section 504 plans as required, unless 
amended by executive order. 
 
Grading 
 
For each grading period, student progress shall be reported in accordance with BP/AR 5121 - 
Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement.  However, in the event that school campuses are 
closed for an extended period of time during any grading period, the Board may, upon 
recommendation by the Superintendent or designee, adopt one or more alternative grading policies 
which may vary by grade level or type of course.  Options for such grading include, but are not 
limited to:  

1.  Assignment of final grades based on the student's grades when the campus shutdown 
occurred, with opportunities to increase the final grade based on progress through 
distance learning or other assignments and assessments 
  

2. Assignment of pass/no pass grades for all courses 
  

3. Grading based on students' understanding of applicable course content through 
assessments, projects, portfolios, or other appropriate means 

Health Screening of Students 
 
To the extent feasible, students shall be screened for COVID-19 symptoms before boarding a 
school bus and/or upon arrival at school each day. The Superintendent or designee shall work with 
local health officials to determine the appropriate means of screening, which may include 
temperature checks with a no-touch thermometer. 
 
If the screening indicates a fever or other COVID-19 symptoms, or if the student exhibits 
symptoms at any time during the school day, the student shall be placed in a supervised isolation 
area until the student's parent/guardian is contacted and the student can be transported home or to 
a health care facility. School staff may provide the parent/guardian with referrals to school or 
community health centers for further testing. 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 
(cf. 9310 - Board Policies) 
 
To limit the impact of the pandemic on the education of district students, the district shall 
implement learning recovery, social-emotional support, and other measures and strategies 
designed to keep students learning and engaged in the instructional program. 
 
COVID-19 Safety Plan 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code 120130, the State Public Health Officer has the authority to create 
mandates for K-12 schools to prevent the spread of a communicable disease.  In addition, the California 
Department of Public Health (CDPH) may adopt and enforce regulations requiring strict or modified isolation or 



4 
 

quarantine if necessary for the protection of the public health.  Local health officials have similar authority pursuant 
to Health and Safety Code 120175-120255 to issue orders they deem necessary to control the spread of a 
communicable disease, subject to the control and regulation of CDPH.  Districts are therefore obligated to comply 
with COVID-19 mitigation requirements from multiple jurisdictional authorities including:  (1) the California 
Department of Public Health (CDPH); (2) Cal/OSHA; and (3) local health authorities. 
 
CDPH's COVID-19 Public Health Guidance for K-12 Schools in California, 2021-22 School Year (updated 
September 1, 2021) provides updated public health guidance applicable to California schools.  The CDPH guidance 
provides that all students must have access to safe and full in-person instruction and to as much instructional time 
as possible.  The guidance includes both mandatory and recommended practices on a range of topics, including:  
masking; physical distancing; ventilation; protocols for staying home when sick and getting tested; screening 
testing; case reporting, contact tracing and investigation; quarantining; isolating when sick with COVID-19; hand 
hygiene; cleaning; vaccination verification; COVID-19 safety planning transparency; school-based extracurricular 
activities; supporting students with disabilities or other health care needs; and visitors. 
 
On June 11, 2021, the State Public Health Officer issued an order that requires all individuals to follow the CDPH 
face mask guidance and any amended guidance for K-12 schools.  This order went into effect on June 15, 2021 
and does not have an expiration date.  In a letter dated August 23, 2021, CDPH emphasized that universal masking 
indoors is mandatory, that districts have no discretion to opt out or not enforce the mandate, and that districts that 
do not enforce the mandate will be at significant liability risk. 
 
In addition, on August 11, 2021, the State Public Health Officer issued an order that requires workers and 
volunteers in school settings serving students in transitional kindergarten through grade 12 to either provide proof 
of vaccination, as specified by CDPH, or submit to regular testing for COVID-19.  Schools are also required to 
have a plan in place by October 15, 2021 for tracking verified worker vaccination status and records must be made 
available, upon request, to the local health authority for the purposes of case investigation. 
 
Pursuant to 8 CCR 3205, districts must have a Cal/OSHA COVID-19 prevention program that contains the 
following elements:  (1) a system for communicating with and providing notice to employees; (2) identification 
and evaluation of COVID-19 hazards; (3) investigation and response to COVID-19 cases; (4) procedures for 
correcting COVID-19 hazards; (5) training and instruction to employees; (6) face coverings; (7) other engineering 
controls, administrative controls, and personal protective equipment (PPE); (8) reporting, recordkeeping, and 
access to the written COVID-19 prevention program; (9) exclusion of COVID-19 cases; and (10) return-to-work 
criteria. 
 
Pursuant to state and federal law, districts are required to create and post COVID-19 safety plans.  Specifically, 
pursuant to Education Code 32091, districts are required to post a completed COVID-19 safety plan that complies 
with the health guidance of CDPH and Cal/OSHA on the district's web site home page.  In addition, districts 
receiving Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief funds are required to adopt and post a Safe Return 
to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan and review it at least every six months for possible 
revisions, describing how the district will maintain the health and safety of students, educators and other staff, 
including the extent to which it has adopted policies, and a description of such policies, on each of the safety 
recommendations provided by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).  A template plan for this 
purpose is available on the California Department of Education's web site. 
 
Due to the evolving nature of the pandemic, health and safety guidance is subject to change.  Districts are strongly 
encouraged to refer directly to public health orders and guidance and work closely with public health authorities 
to ensure that COVID-19 mitigation measures stay current. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish, implement, and maintain a COVID-19 safety plan 
that complies with any mandatory public health guidance of the California Department of Public 
Health (CDPH), the COVID-19 prevention program ("CPP") consistent with the regulations of the 
California Division of Occupational Safety and Health, any orders of state or local health 
authorities, and any other applicable law and/or health order(s).  The Superintendent or designee 
shall ensure, at a minimum, that the COVID-19 safety plan complies with all mandatory guidance 
and gives priority to recommended practices that are identified as being particularly effective at 
COVID-19 mitigation.  The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review public health 



5 
 

guidance to ensure that the district's COVID-19 mitigation strategies are current with public health 
mandates or recommendations. 
 
The district's COVID-19 safety plan shall be posted on the district's web site. 
 

Note:  The following list is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice.  CDPH recommends that 
districts consider certain factors when making decisions regarding COVID-19 mitigation strategies, reflected in 
Items #1-3 below. 

 
To promote transparency and facilitate decision-making regarding COVID-19 mitigation 
strategies, the Superintendent or designee shall report to the Board on a regular basis regarding the 
following: 
 
1. Level of community transmission of COVID-19 
 
2. COVID-19 vaccination coverage in the community and among students and staff 

 
3. Any local COVID-19 outbreaks or increasing trends 

 
4. Changes to local, state, and/or federal public health guidance, orders, and laws 

 
5. Any revisions to the district's COVID-19 safety plan 
 
Reporting to the Public Health Department 
 

Note:  The following section reflects reporting obligations pursuant to Education Code 32090-32091, as added by 
AB 86 (Ch. 10, Statutes of 2021) and amended by AB 130 (Ch. 44, Statutes of 2021). 

 
Upon learning that a school employee or student who has tested positive for COVID-19 was 
present on campus while infectious, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately, and in no 
case later than 24 hours after learning of the positive case, notify the local health officer or the 
local health officer's representative about the positive case.  The notification shall be made even if 
the individual who tested positive has not provided prior consent to the disclosure of personally 
identifiable information and shall include all of the following information, if known:  (Education 
Code 32090) 
 
1. Identifying information of the individual who tested positive, including full name, address, 

telephone number, and date of birth 
 

2. The date of the positive test, the school(s) at which the individual was present, and the date 
the individual was last onsite at the school(s) 
 

3. The name, address, and telephone number of the person making the report 
 
If a school has two or more outbreaks of COVID-19 and is subject to a safety review by CDPH 
pursuant to Education Code 32090, the Superintendent or designee shall cooperate fully with the 
review. 
 
 
 



6 
 

Statewide Instructional Mode Survey 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 32091, as amended by AB 130, districts are required to notify the California 
Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) of specified information in a form and adhering to the 
procedures to be determined by the CCEE. 

 
On or before the second and fourth Monday of each month, the Superintendent or designee shall 
submit to the California Collaborative for Educational (CCEE) information required under 
Education Code 32091, in accordance with the form and procedures determined by CCEE. 
 
Stakeholder Engagement and Community Relations 
 
The district shall solicit input from stakeholders on how to best support students following the 
learning disruptions of the pandemic through appropriate methods, which may include surveys, 
community and family meetings, and other methods identified by the Superintendent or designee. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall collaborate with local health authorities to ensure that 
parents/guardians are provided with the information needed to ensure that public health guidance 
is observed in the home as well as in school, such as information about isolation and quarantine 
requirements, face mask requirements, symptom checks prior to school attendance, and who to 
contact when students have symptoms and/or were exposed. 
 
Student Absence and Attendance 
 
The Board recognizes that COVID-19 will continue to impact the attendance of students following 
the reopening of school campuses. The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and 
parents/guardians of expectations regarding school attendance.  Such notification shall direct any 
student who contracts the virus or lives with someone who has been diagnosed with COVID-19 to 
stay home in accordance with state and local health directives so as to curtail the spread of the 
disease. 
 
Students who are infected with COVID-19 shall be excluded from on-campus instruction until a 
medical provider states in writing that the student is no longer contagious.  (Education Code 
49451; Health and Safety Code 120230; 5 CCR 202) 
 
Students who are identified as being in a high-risk population for serious complications from 
COVID-19 because of a medical condition may request assessment and accommodations under 
Section 504 and/or an alternative instructional method that allows the student to continue receiving 
instruction off campus. 
 
When a student is absent, the student's parent/guardian shall notify the school of the reason for the 
absence.  A physician's verification of a student's illness or quarantine shall be submitted if longer 
than three days. 
 
If a student would otherwise be required to attend on-campus instruction but is kept home by the 
parents/guardians due to concerns for the welfare of their child, the principal or designee shall 
work with the student and parent/guardian to find alternative means of instruction, which may 
include distance or blended learning, independent study, printed class assignments, or other 
reasonable means. 
 



7 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain enrollment and student attendance data, including 
the participation of students in distance learning, and shall report data in accordance with state 
requirements. 
 
The district employee designated as the attendance supervisor pursuant to Education Code 48240 
shall track patterns of student absence throughout the district and regularly report such information 
to the Superintendent.  When a student who is participating in distance learning repeatedly fails to 
check in with the teacher when required, the teacher and/or attendance supervisor shall attempt to 
contact the student or parent/guardian  to resolve the issues leading to the absence. 
 
Social Distancing 
 
In order to maintain a campus environment that allows for social distancing, the district shall assess 
the capacity of school facilities, including classrooms, cafeterias, multi-purpose rooms,  gyms, and 
outdoor areas, and determine the means by which the facilities can best be utilized considering 
space and time alternatives.  To the extent reasonably possible, the district may:  

1.  Within classrooms, space desks at least three feet apart and position them in a way that 
limits students facing each other 
  

2.  Stagger students in areas of high traffic, such as when students are using lockers, lining 
up for class, or passing between classes 
  

3. Mark three-foot boundaries within classrooms, common areas, outdoor spaces, and places 
where students are likely to gather so that students and staff are more readily aware of 
and can more easily abide by social distancing requirements 
  

4. Utilize restroom stalls and sinks in a manner that allows for social distancing, such as 
limiting the number of students and/or staff who may use the restroom at a time, blocking 
off every other stall or sink from use, and/or marking three-foot boundaries 
  

5. Minimize the mixing of students from different classrooms in common spaces, such as in 
cafeterias and libraries 
  

6. Conduct recess and physical education classes in a manner that allows for social 
distancing and minimizes the use of physical education equipment 
  

7.  Assess the capacity of school buses and develop a plan for bus routes and bus seating 
consistent with social distancing objectives as set by the local health department. 
  

8. Encourage students to walk, bicycle, or travel by private vehicle to reduce the number of 
students traveling on school buses. Schools may provide designated areas with proper 
distancing for bicycles to be stored during the school day, and may mark spaces for 
private vehicle drop-off and pick-up zones. 

Large gatherings, such as assemblies, rallies, field trips, extracurricular activities, and athletic 
events, shall be suspended until the Board determines, consistent with guidance from state and 
local health officials, that it is safe to resume such activities.  The Superintendent or designee may 
grant an exception if an activity can be arranged to take place in phases or per class, or modified 
in a manner that would keep participants from violating social distancing recommendations.  When 



8 
 

deciding whether an activity may resume, the Superintendent or designee may consider the size of 
the group that participates, the extent to which the students and other attendees have physical 
contact, whether the activity can be modified to avoid physical contact, if shared equipment is 
required for the activity, and if social distancing can be maintained. 
 
Personal Protective Equipment and Hygiene Practices 
 
The Board encourages students, staff, and visitors to wear PPE while on school campuses or school 
buses, especially in high-traffic areas and/or when social distancing is not possible.  If the use of 
PPE in schools is required by state or local health officials, the district shall provide PPE to students 
and staff who do not bring their own personal PPE.  Students and staff shall be provided instruction 
in the proper use, removal, disposal, and cleaning of PPE. 
 
Face coverings shall not be required for children younger than two years, or for anyone who has 
trouble breathing or is incapacitated or otherwise unable to remove the covering without 
assistance.  Reasonable accommodations shall be made for anyone who is unable to wear a face 
covering for medical reasons. 
 
The Board also encourages students and staff to practice good hygiene, such as appropriate 
covering of coughs and sneezes and regular hand washing of at least 20 seconds, including before 
eating and after blowing one's nose, coughing, or sneezing.  The district shall provide adequate 
time and opportunity for students to wash hands, and shall make hand sanitizer available in areas 
where handwashing is less accessible. Signage regarding healthy hygiene practices and how to 
stop the spread of COVID-19 may be posted in and around school facilities. 
 
Sanitization of Facilities and Equipment 
 
School facilities, school buses, and shared equipment such as desks, tables, sports/playground 
equipment, computers, door handles, light switches, and other frequently used equipment and 
supplies shall be cleaned and disinfected daily with appropriate cleaning agents. Disinfectants and 
cleaning agents shall be stored properly and in a manner not accessible to students. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that ventilation systems are operating properly and 
that air flow and ventilation within district facilities is increased, to the extent possible, by opening 
windows and doors and using fans and air conditioning. Garbage shall be removed daily and 
disposed of safely. 
 
Food Services 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students have access to clean drinking water other 
than through a drinking fountain, and food which is procured, stored, and served in a manner that 
reduces the likelihood of COVID-19 transmission and follows state and national guidelines for 
nutrition. 
 
For meals that are consumed on school grounds, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that 
students will be able to maintain proper social distancing while eating. In order to do so, the 
Superintendent or designee may consider the consumption of meals in classrooms, gyms, the 
outdoors, and/or other district grounds. 
 
Meal service shall also be available to students participating in distance learning, which may 



9 
 

include and/or entirely consist of a "grab and go" service or delivery. 
 
Due to the changing financial circumstances of many families as a result of COVID-19, the 
Superintendent or designee shall regularly provide information to students and parents/guardians 
regarding the free and reduced-price meal program, eligibility, and how to apply for the program. 
 
Staff 
 
Prior to reopening campuses, the Superintendent or designee shall review staff assignments and, 
upon request, may reassign employees to reduce exposure to the virus, especially for high-risk 
staff. When feasible for the position, employees may be granted a remote work assignment. 
 
In the event that employees are unable to perform their duties due to partial or full closure of 
campuses, the Board shall compensate employees as permitted by law. 
 
Any employee who contracts the virus, shows symptoms of possible infection, or is caring for 
someone who has been diagnosed with the virus shall self-quarantine for the period of time 
recommended by health authorities in order to prevent the spread of the disease to students or other 
staff. 
 
An employee may use personal illness and injury leave and/or family care and medical leave, as 
applicable, if the employee is unable to work or telework because the employee is ill or needs to 
take care of a spouse, parent/guardian, or child with COVID-19 or other serious health 
condition.  (Education Code 44978, 45191; Government Code 12945.1-12945.2; Labor Code 245-
249; 29 USC 2601-2654) 
 
Until December 31, 2020, an eligible employee may take paid sick leave for up to 80 hours, or the 
number of hours that a part-time employee works on average over a two-week period, if the 
employee is unable to work or telework because the employee is:  (29 USC 2601)  

1. Subject to a federal, state, or local quarantine or isolation order related to COVID-19 
  

2. Advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine due to concerns related to COVID-
19 
  

3. Experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 and seeking a medical diagnosis 
  

4. Caring for an individual who is subject to a federal, state, or local quarantine or isolation 
order or has been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine 
  

5. Caring for the employee's child whose school or child care provider is closed or 
unavailable for reasons related to COVID-19 
  

6. Experiencing any other substantially similar condition specified by the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services 

Employees shall be paid their regular rate of pay for leave taken pursuant to items #1-3 above, or 
two-thirds their regular rate of pay for leave taken pursuant to items #4-6 above, within the limits 
specified in law.  (29 USC 2601) 
 



10 
 

For the purpose specified in item #5 above, eligible employees who have been employed by the 
district for at least 30 calendar days shall be granted extended leave for up to 12 work weeks 
upon request.  The first 10 days of such leave shall be unpaid unless the employee uses accrued 
vacation leave, personal leave, sick leave, or paid sick leave granted pursuant to 29 USC 
2601.  After the first 10 days, the district shall pay not less than two-thirds of the employee's 
regular pay for the number of hours per week the employee normally works, with a maximum of 
$200 per day and $10,000 for the total period.  Eligibility for extended leave for this purpose is 
subject to the employee's eligibility for leave pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act.  (29 
USC 2601, 2620) 
 
The district shall post, in conspicuous places where employee notices are customarily posted, a 
notice prepared by the U.S. Department of Labor regarding the requirements of 29 USC 2601 
and 2620.  (29 USC 2601) 
 
Follow-Up with Infected Persons/Contact Tracing 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall work with county health officials to track confirmed cases 
of students and staff with COVID-19, including, but not limited to, following up with students, 
their parents/guardians, and staff who exhibit symptoms while at school and those who report an 
absence or miss work due to illness.  The Superintendent or designee shall report confirmed 
cases to local health authorities. 
 
If a student, family member of a student, or staff member has tested positive for COVID-19, the 
district shall assist local health officials in conducting contact-tracing to identify potentially 
exposed individuals and ask them to self-quarantine, which may include not participating in on-
campus instruction. While maintaining the privacy of the infected person, the district shall 
inform other students and staff with whom the infected person may have had contact in school. 
 
Nondiscrimination 
 
The Board prohibits discrimination based on actual or perceived medical condition or disability 
status.  (Government Code 11135) 
 
Individual students and staff shall not be identified as being COVID-positive, nor shall students 
be shamed, treated differently, or denied access to a free and appropriate public education 
because of their COVID-19 status or medical condition. Staff shall not disclose confidential or 
privileged information, including the medical history or health information of students and 
staff.  (Education Code 49450) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any reports of harassment, intimidation, and 
bullying targeted at any student based on COVID status, exposure, or high-risk status. 
 
Community Relations 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall use a variety of methods to regularly communicate with 
students, parents/guardians, and the community regarding community transmission levels, 
district operations, school schedules, and steps the district is taking to promote the health and 
safety of students.  In addition, the members of the Board have a responsibility as community 
leaders to communicate matters of public interest in a manner that is consistent with Board 



11 
 

policies and bylaws regarding public statements. 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 9010 - Public Statements) 
 
The district shall continue to collaborate with local health officials and agencies, community 
organizations, and other stakeholders to ensure that district operations reflect current 
recommendations and best practices for keeping students, staff, and visitors safe during the 
COVID-19 state of emergency.COVID-19 mitigation strategies.  The Superintendent or designee 
shall keep informed about resources and services available in the community to assist students 
and families in need. 
 
While  
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 
(cf. 1700 - Relations Between Private Industry and the Board recognizes the rights of parents/guardians to 
participate in the education of their  children and the critical importance of parental involvement 
in the educational process, all visitors and volunteers are encouraged to respect guidelines 
regarding social distancing and large gatherings.  School visitors and volunteers shall be limited 
in number and expected to observe all district protocols for COVID-19.  The Superintendent or 
designee may place signage around the school advising that visitors and volunteers may be Schools) 
 
Learning Recovery and Social-Emotional Support 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 43520-43525, as added by AB 86 and amended by AB 130, starting in the 
2020-21 school year and continuing into the 2022-23 school year, districts are required to provide academic 
interventions and student supports to address barriers to learning and accelerate progress to closing learning gaps. 
 
The U.S. Department of Education's Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP) has emphasized that districts 
are required to fully implement the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) during the COVID-19 
pandemic, including but not limited to the requirement to meet child find obligations.  In Return to School 
Roadmap:  Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, OSEP encourages districts 
to reexamine the efficacy of existing child find practices in light of the educational disruptions caused by the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  See BP/AR 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education for 
"child find" procedures. 
 
The following paragraph is optional and may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop plans and procedures for alternative methods of 
operations to the extent possible in the event that reclosure becomes necessary. 
If any person diagnosed a plan for assessing students' current academic levels early in the school 
year to ensure that each student is provided with COVID-19 is known to have been in district 
building(s), the Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify local health officials to 
determine a course of action.  The building should be closed until cleaning and disinfecting of 
the building can be completed and the district can consultappropriate opportunities for learning 
recovery based on need.  The plan may include: 
 
1. Use of interim or diagnostic assessments 
 
2. Review of available data from assessments within the California Assessment of Student 

Performance and Progress 
 
3. Review of attendance data from the 2020-2021 school year 



12 
 

 
4. Review of prior year grades 
 
5. Discussion of student needs and strengths with local health officialsparents/guardians and 

former teachers 
 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5141.5 - Mental Health) 
(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6120 - Response to Instruction and Intervention) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6146.11 - Alternative Credits Toward Graduation) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 43522, as amended by AB 130, districts that receive Extended Learning 
Opportunities (ELO) grant funding are required to implement a learning recovery program that provides 
supplemental instruction, support for social-emotional well-being, and to the maximum extent permissible as 
specified in U.S. Department of Agriculture guidelines, meals and snacks, to students who are eligible for free or 
reduced-price meals, English learners, foster youth, homeless students, students with disabilities, students at risk 
of abuse, neglect, or exploitation, disengaged students, and students who are below grade level, including, but not 
limited to, those who did not enroll in kindergarten in the 2020-21 school year, credit-deficient students, high 
school students at risk of not graduating, and other students identified by certificated staff. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement a learning recovery program that, at 
a minimum, provides supplemental instruction and support for social emotional well-being, and to 
the maximum extent permissible meals and snacks, to eligible students.  (Education Code 43522) 
 
Supplemental Instruction and Support 
 
The district shall provide students with evidence-based supports and interventions in a tiered 
framework that bases universal, targeted, and intensive supports on students' needs for academic, 
social-emotional, and other integrated student supports through a program of engaging learning 
experiences in a positive school climate.  (Education Code 43522) 
 
Targeted and intensive supports may include:  (Education Code 43522) 
 
1. Extending instructional learning time based on student learning needs including through 

summer school or intersessional instructional programs 
 
2. Tutoring or other one-on-one or small group learning supports provided by certificated or 

classified staff 
 
3. Learning recovery programs and materials designed to accelerate student academic 

proficiency, English language proficiency, or both 
 
4. Integrated student supports to address other barriers to learning, such as: 



13 
 

 
a. The provision of health, counseling, or mental health services 
 
b. Access to school meal programs 
 
c. Access to before and after school programs 
 
d. Programs to address student trauma and social-emotional learning 
 
e. Referrals for support for family or student needs 

 
5. Community learning hubs that provide students with access to technology, high-speed 

internet, and other academic supports 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51225, as added by AB 104 (Ch. 41, Statutes of 2021), the district is required 
to provide a student who was enrolled in the student's third or fourth year of high school during the 2020-21 school 
year and is not on track to graduate in the 2020-21 or 2021-22 school years the opportunity to complete the 
statewide coursework required for graduation pursuant to Education Code 51225.3, which may include, but is not 
limited to, completion of the coursework through a fifth year of instruction, credit recovery, or other opportunity 
to complete the required coursework.  See BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. 

 
6. Supports for credit deficient students to complete graduation or grade promotion 

requirements and to increase or improve students' college eligibility 
 

7. Additional academic services for students, such as diagnostic, progress monitoring, and 
benchmark assessments of student learning 
 

8. Other interventions identified by the Superintendent or designee 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 43522, as added by AB 86 and amended by AB 130, funding from ELO grants 
may be expended for educating school staff regarding strategies, including trauma-informed practices, to engage 
students and families in addressing students' social-emotional health and academic needs as well as for accelerated 
learning and effectively addressing learning gaps. 

 
To ensure schoolwide implementation of the district's tiered framework of supports, the 
Superintendent or designee shall plan staff development that includes:  (Education Code 43522) 
 
1. Accelerated learning strategies and effective techniques for closing learning gaps, 

including training in facilitating quality learning opportunities for all students 
 
2. Strategies, including trauma-informed practices, to engage students and families in 

addressing students' social-emotional health needs and academic needs 
 
Reengagement for Chronically Absent Students 
 

Note:  The U.S. Department of Education (USDOE) recommends that nonpunitive measures be used to reengage 
students who became chronically absent during the pandemic.  See USDOE's ED COVID-19 Handbook, Volume 
2:  Roadmap to Reopening Safely and Meeting All Students' Needs (August 2021). 

 



14 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall implement strategies for identifying, locating, and 
reengaging students who were chronically absent or disengaged during the 2020-21 school year, 
including students who were kindergarten-age but who did not enroll in kindergarten.   Strategies 
for reengaging students may include: 
 
1. Personal outreach to families, including by staff who are known to families 
 
2. Door-to-door campaigns 
 
3. The use of social media to spread awareness about the implementation of COVID-19 

mitigation strategies 
 
4. Welcoming and supporting students who experienced chronic absenteeism due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic or who are returning to school after a long absence 
 
Student Absence and Attendancecampuses may not necessarily be closed, but the district shall 
continue to take all preventative measures described in this policy. 
 
If local health officials report substantial community transmission of COVID-19, campus closures 
of more than two weeks may be necessary, and the 
 
The Board recognizes that COVID-19 will continue to impact the attendance of students.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians of expectations regarding 
school attendance.  Such notification shall direct any student who contracts the virus or is subject 
to a quarantine order to stay home in accordance with state and local health orders. 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
(cf. 5113.11 - Attendance Supervision) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 51745, as amended by AB 130, for the 2021-22 school year all districts are 
required to offer independent study to meet the educational needs of students.  See BP 6158 - Independent Study 
and 3516.5 - Emergency Schedules. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure continuity of instruction for students who may be 
under a quarantine order to stay home, by offering such students independent study or other 
instructional delivery channels that allows the student to continue to participate in the instructional 
program to the greatest extent possible. 
 
Nondiscrimination 
 
The Board prohibits discrimination based on actual or perceived medical condition or disability 
status.  (Government Code 11135) 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
Individual students and staff shall not be identified as being COVID-positive, nor shall students 
be shamed, treated differently, or denied access to a free and appropriate public education because 
of their COVID-19 status or medical condition. cancel group activities and events during that 
period.  Campuses shall not reopen until recommended by  Staff shall not disclose confidential or 
privileged information, including the medical history or health information of students and staff 
except as allowed by law.  (Education Code 49450) 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 



15 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any reports of harassment, intimidation, and 
bullying targeted at any student based on their medical condition or COVID status, exposure, or 
high-risk status. 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
32090-32095  COVID-19 reporting and public health requirements 
43520-43525  In-person instruction and expanded learning opportunities grants 
44978  Sick leave for certificated employees 
45191  Leave of absence for illness and injury, classified employees 
48205  Excused absences 
48213  Prior parent notification of exclusion; exemption 
48240  Supervisors of attendance 
49451  Exemption from physical exam; exclusion from attendance 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 
54950-54963  The Brown Act 
12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
120175-120255  Functions and duties of local health officers 
120230  Exclusion from attendance 
120275  Violations of quarantine order 
131080  Advice to and control of local health officials. authorities 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11087-11098  California Family Rights Act 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
202  Exclusion from attendance 
306  Explanation of absence 
420-421  Record of verification of absence due to illness and other causes 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
3205  COVID-19 prevention 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Sample School Board Resolution on Grading During Emergency School Closures 
The Resource Guide:  Turning Crisis into Opportunity, Delegate Assembly Report, May 2021 
Understanding and Addressing Disruptions to Learning During the COVID-19 Pandemic, May 2021 
CALIFORNIA COLLABORATION FOR EDUCATIONAL EXCELLENCE PUBLICATIONS 
Statewide Instructional Mode Survey Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs), September 14, 2021 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Safe Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan Template 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH PUBLICATIONS 
COVID-19 Public Health Guidance for K-12 Schools in California, 2021-22 School Year, September 1, 
2021 
Requirement for Universal Masking Indoors at K-12 Schools, August 23, 2021 
State Public Health Officer Order of August 11, 2021 
State Public Health Officer Order of June 11, 2021 
CALIFORNIA DIVISION OF OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH PUBLICATIONS 
COVID-19 Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards - Fact Sheets, Model Written Program and Other 
Resources 
CALIFORNIANS TOGETHER PUBLICATIONS 
Teaching and Learning During Uncertain Times:  A Review of Learning Continuity Plans 
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION PUBLICATIONS 
Guidance for COVID-19 Prevention in K-12 Schools, August 5, 2021 
INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION SCIENCES PUBLICATIONS 



16 
 

Addressing Trauma in Educational Settings, Module 1:  Impacts and Symptoms of Trauma and Relevant 
Strategies to Support Students, Webinar, November 2020 
NATIONAL CENTER FOR LEARNING DISABILITIES PUBLICATIONS 
Promising Practices to Accelerate Learning for Students with Disabilities During COVID-19 and Beyond 
NATIONAL SCHOOL PUBLIC RELATIONS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
Coronavirus Communications Crisis for Public Schools guide 
OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET PUBLICATIONS 
Administrative Relief for Recipients and Applicants of Federal Financial Assistance Directly Impacted by 
the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) Due to Loss of Operations, Memorandum M-20-17, March 19, 2020 
Evidence-Based Practices for Assessing Students' Social and Emotional Well-Being, February 2021 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Confronting COVID-19-Related Harassment in Schools, August 2021 
ED COVID-19 Handbook, Volume 1:  Strategies for Safely Reopening Elementary and Secondary Schools, 
August 2021 
ED COVID-19 Handbook, Volume 2:  Roadmap to Reopening Safely and Meeting All Students' Needs, 
August 2021 
Return to School Roadmap:  Child Find Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 
August 2021 
Long COVID under Section 504 and the IDEA:  A Resource to Support Children, Students, Educators, 
Schools, Service Providers, and Families, July 2021 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Collaborative for Educational Excellence:  https://ccee-ca.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Department of Public Health:  https://www.cdph.ca.gov 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention:  https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov 
California Division of Occupational Safety and Health:  https://www.dir.ca.gov/dosh 
California Interscholastic Federation:  https://cifstate.org/covid-19/index 
Office of the Governor:  https://www.gov.ca.gov 
Office of Management and Budget:  https://www.whitehouse.gov/omb 
State of California Safe Schools for All Hub:  https://schools.covid19.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Labor:  https://www.dol.gov 
World Health Organization:  https://www.who.int 



1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Business and Noninstructional Operations 
Policy 3516.5: Emergency Schedules 

 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 07/12/2011  
 

In order to provide for the safety of students and staff, the Governing Board of Education authorizes 
the Superintendent or designee to close a school site, change the regular school day schedule, or 
take any necessary action when hazardous environmental or weather conditions or other 
emergencies warrant. 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 
(cf. 5142 - Safety) 
(cf. 6112 - School Day) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 41422 and 46392, a district may apply to the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction to obtain apportionment credit for days and minutes lost due to emergency closure and material 
decreases in attendance due to emergency events such as a fire, flood, impassable roads, epidemic, earthquake, 
imminence of a major safety hazard, strike involving transportation services to students provided by a nonschool 
entity, or other "extraordinary condition" so that it may receive full average daily attendance apportionment. 

 
(cf. 3516.1 - Fire Drills and Fires) 
(cf. 3516.2 - Bomb Threats) 
(cf. 3516.3 - Earthquake Emergency Procedure System) 
When an emergency condition causes a school closure, reduction in attendance, or change in 
schedule pursuant to Education Code 41422 or 46392, thereby preventing the district from 
complying with the minimum number of instructional days or minutes required by law, the 
Superintendent or designee shall complete and submit to the Superintendent of Public Instruction 
(SPI) the necessary forms and/or affidavits for obtaining approval of apportionment credit for the 
days of the closure, reduction in attendance, or change in schedule.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall submit other relevant district records as may be required. 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 
 

Note:  Education Code 46393, as added by AB 130 (Ch. 44, Statutes of 2021), requires districts submitting 
affidavits regarding emergency events occurring after September 1, 2021 to certify that the district has a plan for 
offering independent study to impacted students. 

 
For school closures due to emergency events occurring after September 1, 2021, the 
Superintendent or designee shall develop a plan for offering independent study within 10 days of 
school closure to any student impacted by the emergency condition.  The plan shall also address 
the establishment, within a reasonable time, of independent study master agreements as specified 
in BP 6158 - Independent Study.  The plan shall require reopening in person as soon as possible 
once allowable under the direction from the city or county health officer.  The Superintendent or 
designee shall certify that the district has a plan for independent study in the affidavit submitted to 
the SPI pursuant to Education Code 46392.  (Education Code 46393) 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 

Note:  Vehicle Code 34501.6 mandates the Governing Board of any district that provides student transportation to 
adopt procedures that limit the home-to-school operation of school buses when atmospheric conditions reduce 
visibility to 200 feet or less; see AR 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies for language implementing 
this mandate.  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a system for informing students and 
parents/guardians when school buses are not operating as scheduled, the school day schedule is 
changed, or the school is closed.  The district's notification system mayshall include, but is not 
limited to, notifying local television and radio stations, posting on district web site(s), sending 
email and text messages, and/or making telephone calls. 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers) 
(cf. 3543 - Transportation Safety and Emergencies) 
 
Whenever the school day schedule changes after students have arrived at school, the 
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students are supervised in accordance with the 
procedures specified in the district's emergency and disaster preparedness plan. 
(cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may provide a means to make up lost instructional time later 
during the year.  Students and parents/guardians shall receive timely advanced notice in advance of 
any resulting changes in the school calendar or school day schedule. 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
41420  Required length of school term 
41422  Schools not maintained for 175 days 
46010  Total days of attendance 
46100-46208  Attendance; maximum credit; minimum day 
46390  Calculation of ADA in emergency 
46391  Lost or destroyed ADA records 
46392  Decreased attendance in emergency situation 
46393  Certification of plan for independent study 
VEHICLE CODE 
34501.6  School buses; reduced visibility 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION CORRESPONDENCE 
90-01  Average Daily Attendance Credit During Periods of Emergency, February 10, 2005 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Frequently Asked Questions - Form J-13A 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 



1 
**Revisions** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Personnel 
Policy 4131: Staff Development 

 

Original Adopted Date: 04/10/2007 | Last Revised Date: 10/13/2015  
 

Note:  Staff development is not one of the enumerated items within the scope of collective bargaining pursuant to 
Government Code 3543.2.  However, the Public Employment Relations Board (PERB) has found that some aspects 
of staff development may be negotiable if they are related to an enumerated subject of bargaining, such as working 
hours, wages, or other enumerated terms or conditions of employment; see United Faculty of Contra Costa 
Community College District v. Contra Costa Community College District.  Because the terms "staff development" 
and "training" are not always clear, their negotiability, in the absence of an agreement, may be determined by 
PERB on a case-by-case basis. 
 
The following paragraph has been expanded to emphasize the importance of student well-being and related 
professional development in the area of social-emotional development and learning.  Social-emotional learning is 
a strategy utilized to improve school climate, which benefits all students including students at higher risk of 
harassment.  See Items #4 and 7 below regarding diverse student populations and school climate, respectively. 

 
The Governing Board of Education believes that, in order to maximize student learning and, 
achievement, and well-being, certificated staff members must be continuously learning and 
improving theirrelevant skills.  The Superintendent or designee shall develop a program of ongoing 
professional development which includes opportunities for teachers to enhance their instructional 
and classroom management skills and, become informed about changes in pedagogy and subject 
matter, and strengthen practices related to social-emotional development and learning. 
(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 
 

Note:  Education Code 52060-52077 require districts to develop a local control and accountability plan (LCAP) 
which includes goals aligned with state and local priorities, specific actions aligned to meet those goals, and a 
budget aligned to fund those specific actions; see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan.  The 
district's staff development program should be aligned with its priorities and goals as outlined in the LCAP and 
other applicable district and school plans. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall involve teachers, site and district administrators, and others, 
as appropriate, in the development ofwhen creating, reviewing, and amending the district's staff 
development program. He/she The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's staff 
development program is aligned with district priorities for student learning, achievement and well-
being, school improvement objectives, the local control and accountability plan, and other district 
and school plans. 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 

Note:  Items #1-11 below are optional and may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
(cf. 0520.2 - Title I Program Improvement Schools) 
(cf. 0520.3 - Title I Program Improvement Districts) 
 



2 
 

The district's staff development program shall assist certificated staff in developing knowledge 
and skills, including, but not limited to: 
 
1.  Mastery of subject-matter knowledge, including current state and district academic 

standards 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.3 - Civic Education) 
(cf. 6142.5 - Environmental Education) 
(cf. 6142.6 - Visual and Performing Arts Education) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
(cf. 6142.91 - Reading/Language Arts Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 

 
2.  Use of effective, subject-specific teaching methods, strategies, and skills 
 

Note:  The State Board of Education's California Digital Learning Integration and Standards Guidance, adopted 
pursuant to SB 98 (Ch. 24, Statutes of 2020), provides recommendations for staff development regarding 
technology-based learning.  It encompasses curriculum and instructional guidance for mathematics, English 
language arts, and English language development, including a framework for addressing critical standards, 
formative and diagnostic assessment, recommended aggregate time for instruction and independent work by grade, 
and guidance on embedding social-emotional supports for students into technology-based learning curriculum.  
Although this guidance was written in response to COVID-19, it is intended to be used as a resource for the re-
envisioning of education and digital teaching and learning. 
 
Education Code 51745-51749.6, as amended by AB 130 (Ch. 44, Statutes of 2021), contain specified requirements 
for districts offering technology-based instruction pursuant to an independent study program. See BP/AR 6158 - 
Independent Study. 

 
3.  Use of technologies to enhance instruction and learning, including face-to-face, remote, or 

hybrid instruction 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 
(cf. 4113.5/4213.5/4313.5 - Working Remotely) 
(cf. 6158 - Independent Study) 
(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 

 
Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 218, the California Department of Education (CDE) has developed and/or 
updated resources, available on its web site, for use in schools serving students in grades 7-12 for in-service 
training for the support of lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, and questioning (LGBTQ) students, and 
strategies to increase support for LGBTQ students which improve overall school climate. Pursuant to Education 
Code 218, districts that serve students in grades 7-12 are encouraged to use such resources to provide training at 
least once every two years to teachers and other certificated staff. 

 
4.  Sensitivity to and ability to meet the needs of diverse student populations, including, but 

not limited to, students of various racial and ethnic groups, students with disabilities, English 
learners, economically disadvantaged students, foster youth, gifted and talented students, and at-



3 
 

risk studentswith characteristics specified in Education Code 200 and/or 220, Government 
Code 11135, and/or Penal Code 422.55 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 0415 - Equity) 
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Language Learners) 
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
(cf. 5147 - Dropout Prevention) 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 

 
5.  Understanding of how academic and career technical instruction can be integrated and 

implemented to increase student learning 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 

 
6.  Knowledge of strategies that encourage parents/guardians to participate fully and 

effectively in their children's education 
(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance) 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 
7.  Effective classroom management skills and strategies for establishing a climate that 

promotes respect, fairness, toleranceacceptance, and disciplinecivility, including conflict 
resolution and, hatred prevention, and positive behavioral interventions and supports 
(cf. 1313 - Civility) 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

 
8.  Ability to relate to students, understand their various stages of growth and development, 

and motivate them to learn 
 
9.  Ability to interpret and use data and assessment results to guide instruction 

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

 
Note:  The following paragraph has been expanded to include social-emotional learning and trauma-informed 
practices. 
 
The Collaborative for Academic, Social, and Emotional Learning describes social-emotional learning as, "the 
process through which all young people and adults acquire and apply the knowledge, skills, and attitudes to develop 
healthy identities, manage emotions and achieve personal and collective goals, feel and show empathy for others, 
establish and maintain supportive relationships, and make responsible and caring decisions." 
 



4 
 

Trauma-informed practices include recognizing and responding appropriately to students who have experienced 
trauma in order to minimize disruption to learning, academic achievement, and physical and emotional well-being. 

 
10.  Knowledge of topics related to student mental and physical health, safety, and welfare, 

which may include social-emotional learning and trauma-informed practices 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs) 
(cf. 5131.63 - Steroids) 
(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 
(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
(cf. 5141.5 - Mental Health) 
(cf. 5141.52 - Suicide Prevention) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.71 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 

 
11.  Knowledge of topics related to employee health, safety, and security 

(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 4119.12 - Title IX Sexual Harassment Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4119.41/4219.41/4319.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease) 
(cf. 4119.42/4219.42/4319.42- Exposure Control Plan for Bloodborne Pathogens) 
(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 
(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 
(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security) 

 
Note:  The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice.  Education Code 44277 
encourages districts to establish individualized professional growth programs for teachers and other educators 
based on a needs assessment and to evaluate such programs based on specified criteria.  Districts may assist 
teachers with preliminary credentials to meet the qualifications required for a professional clear credential, and are 
required to provide support and guidance to teachers participating in internship programs (Education Code 44325-
44328, 44450-44468, and 44830.3) and teachers who possess a short-term staff permit (5 CCR 80021), a 
provisional internship permit (5 CCR 80021.1), or an emergency permit (Education Code 44300; 5 CCR 80023-
80026.6); see AR 4112.2 - Certification and AR 4112.21 - Interns. 

 
The Superintendent or designee mayshall, in conjunction with teachers, interns, and administrators, 
as appropriate, develop an individualized program of professional growth to increase competence, 
performance, and effectiveness in teaching and classroom management and, as necessary, to assist 
them in meeting state or federal requirements to be fully qualified for their positions. 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 
(cf. 4112.21 - Interns) 
(cf. 4112.24 - Teacher Qualifications Under the No Child Left Behind Act) 
(cf. 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance) 
 
Professional learning opportunities offered by the district shall be evaluated based on the criteria 
specified in Education Code 44277.  Such opportunities may be part of a coherent plan that 
combines school activities within a school, including lesson study or co-teaching, and external 
learning opportunities that are related to academic subjects taught, provide time to meet and work 
with other teachers, and support instruction and student learning.  Learning activities may include, 
but are not limited to, mentoring projects for new teachers, extra support for teachers to improve 



5 
 

practice, and collaboration time for teachers to develop new instructional lessons, select or develop 
common formative assessments, or analyze student data.  (Education Code 44277) 
 
The district's staff evaluation process may be used to recommend additional individualized staff 
development for individual employees. 
(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
 
The Board may budget funds for actual and reasonable expenses incurred by staff who participate 
in staff development activities. 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide a means for continual evaluation of the benefit of 
staff development activities to both staff and students and shall regularly report to the Board 
regarding the effectiveness of the staff development program.  Based on the  
 
Superintendent's report, the Board may revise the program as necessary to ensure that the staff 
development program supports the district's priorities for student achievement and well-being. 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200  Educational equity 
218  Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, and questioning student resources 
220  Prohibition of discrimination 
44032  Travel expense payment 
44259.5  Standards for teacher preparation 
44277  Professional growth programs for individual teachers 
44300  Emergency permits 
44325-44328  District interns 
44450-44468  University internship program 
44830.3  Distric interns45028  Salary schedule and exceptions 
48980  Notification of parents/guardians; schedule of minimum days 
51745-51749.6  Independent study 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
56240-56245  Staff development; service to persons with disabilities 
99200-99204  Subject matter projects 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3543.2  Scope of representation of employee organization 
11135  Discrimination 
PENAL CODE 
422.55  Hate crime 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
13025-13044  Professional development and program improvement 
80021  Short-term staff permit 
80021.1  Provisional internship permit 
80023-80026.6  Emergency permits 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688  Discrimination based on sex or blindness, Title IX 
6601-6692  Preparing, training, and recruiting high quality teachers and principals 
UNITED STATES CODE TITLE 29 
794  Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504 
UNITED STATES CODE TITLE 42 



6 
 

2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD DECISIONS 
United Faculty of Contra Costa Community College District v. Contra Costa Community College District, 
(1990) PERB Dec. No. 804, 14 PERC P21085 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Governing to the Core:  Professional Development for Common Core, Governance Brief, May 2013 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California Digital Learning Integration and Standards Guidance, June 2021 
Social and Emotional Learning in California, A Guide to Resources, October 2018 
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS 
California Standards for the Teaching Profession (CSTP), 2009 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Professional Learning:  http://www.cde.ca.gov/pd 
California Department of Education, Supporting LGBTQ+ Students:  
https://www.cde.ca.gov/pd/ee/supportlgbtq.asp 
California Subject Matter Project:  http://csmp.ucop.edu 
Collaborative for Academic, Social, and Emotional Learning:  https://casel.org 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing:  http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
Public Employment Relations Board:  https://perb.ca.gov 




